
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, February 17, 2014

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 21

Regular PM Meeting - January 27, 2014
Regular PM Meeting - February 3, 2014

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 Janice Henry, Executive Director, Central Okanagan Heritage Society, re: 
Heritage Week

22 - 35

To provide Council with an update regarding the work of the local Committee
and to advise of the events planned for Heritage Week.

3.2 Randi Fox, Committee Member, City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program, re: 
Annual Report

36 - 68

To provide Council with an update regarding the Heritage Grants Program
administratered by the Central Okanagan Heritage Society.

4. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1 Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A13-0016 - 1454 Teasdale
Road, Parminder & Kulwant Hans

69 - 86

To obtain Council's support for an application to the Agricultural Land
Commission to construct a single family dwelling near the northern end of the
subject property.

4.2 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0020 and 87 - 104

1



Rezoning Application No. Z13-0043, 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great Project
Ltd. & City of Kelowna

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation and to
rezone the northern section of the subject property to accommodate the
development of a single family subdivision; To forward the application to a
Public Hearing.

4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10914 (OCP13-0020) - 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great
Projects Ltd. & City of Kelowna

105 - 106

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10914 first reading in order to change the future
land use designation of the subject property from the Multiple Unit
Residential - Low Density and Single/Two Unit Residential
designations to the Single/Two Unit Residential designation.

4.2.2 Bylaw No. 10915 (Z13-0043) - 1055 Frost Road, No. 21 Great Projects
Ltd. & City of Kelowna

107 - 109

To give Bylaw No. 10915 first reading in order to rezone portions of
the subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 amd the RU1h -
Large Lot Housing (Hillside) zones to the RU3 - Small Lot Housing one.

4.3 Rezoning Application No. Z14-0003 - 4377 Gordon Drive, Richard & Michelle
Kooistra

110 - 126

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject property from RU1 – Large Lot
Housing to RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to allow a second dwelling on the
parcel; To forward the application to a Public Hearing.

4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10916 (Z14-0003) - 4377 Gordon Drive, Richard & Michelle
Kooistra

127 - 127

To give Bylaw No. 10916 first reading in order to rezone the subject
property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two
Dwelling Housing zone.

4.4 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0197 - 945 Academy
Way, Watermark Developments Ltd. 

128 - 156

To consider the form and character of the propsoed 3-storey, 66 unit
residential building and associated landscaping and site works on the subject
property in the University South Area.

4.5 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0005 - 1517-1541 Keehn Road,
Hywood Contractors Ltd.

157 - 186

To consider a Development Permit to evaluate the form and character of a
proposed automotive service centre against the guildelines established in the
Official Community Plan.

2



5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Development Application Process Review - Implementation Update 187 - 199

To provide a status update for Council on the implementation of development
application process improvements recommended in the Development
Application Process Review report endorsed by Council on May 27, 2013.

5.2 Signage 200 - 214

To consider amendments to Development Application Procedures Bylaw No.
10540 as recommended by the Development Application Process Review report
and to amend Council Policy No. 367, Development Application - Public
Notification and Consultation Process.

5.2.1 Bylaw No. 10911 - Amendment No. 3 to Development Application
Procedures Bylaw No. 10540

215 - 216

To give Bylaw No. 10911 first, second and third readings in order to
amend Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540

5.3 2014 Rental Housing Grants 217 - 220

To increase the supply of rental housing through the provision of rental housing
grants.

5.4 Okanagan Basin Water Board and Quality Improvements Grants 221 - 231

To seek Council’s support to apply to the Okanagan Basin Water Board for a
grant request of $30,000.00 for shoreline stabilization as part of the Royal
Avenue to Strathcona Park project.

5.5 Public Art Program Annual Report 232 - 254

To update Council on the status of the Public Art Program and to receive
Council direction with regard to initiatives for 2014.

5.6 Alternate Approval Form for the New Police Services Building Project 255 - 258

To initiate an alternative approval process, and establish the deadline for receipt
of elector responses for the borrowing from the Municipal Finance Authority of
Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($42, 384,
000.00) for the new Kelowna Police Services Building project.

6. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

6.1 Bylaw No. 10910 - Road Closure Bylaw, Portion of Road adjacent to Sutton
Glen Park

259 - 260

Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected

3



by the proposed road closure to come forward.
To adopt Bylaw No. 10910 in order to authorize the City to permanently close
and remove the highway dedication of a portion of highway adjacent to Sutton
Glen Park.

7. Mayor and Councillor Items

8. Termination

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



HERITAGE AFLOAT 

Heritage Week 2014  

22



BRITISH COLUMBIA THEME  

“HERITAGE AFLOAT ”   

 
 
 
 

Declared both Nationally and 
Provincially 

 

23



Member groups: 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Central Okanagan Regional District  
Central Okanagan Heritage Society 

FRACHAS 
Kelowna  Museums 

Kelowna & District Genealogical Society 
KSAN 

Rutland Residents Association 
Okanagan Historical Society 
Okanagan Regional Library  

Okanagan Mission Residents Association 
Lake Country Museum 

Westbank Museum   
 

24



25



26



S.S. Sicamous  

27



S.S. Sicamous at Ok Centre Wharf 

28



S.S. Okanagan 
at Ok Centre 
Warf  

 

29



30



31



32



War Canoe Team - 1943 

33



34



 HERITAGE AFLOAT   

Heritage Week 2014  

35



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 1 
 

CITY of KELOWNA HERITAGE GRANTS PROGRAM  

Annual Report: 2013 

 

 
The City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program (CoKHGP) is completing its sixth year under the 

management of the Central Okanagan Heritage Society (COHS). During this period, the mandate of the 

program has become focused primarily on informing the public about the program, administering the 

application process and educating heritage building owners on good heritage conservation practices.  

Over the past year, the City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program has observed that many residents of 

our community are interested in the conservation of our heritage buildings and in raising public 

awareness of the heritage of our community. Many owners of heritage buildings have obtained financial 

assistance and advice from the Heritage Grants Program on conserving their heritage properties.  

The following summarizes the City of Kelowna Heritage Grant Program’s activities for the past year.  

 

Committee Members:  

The CoKHGP committee is composed of five regular members and a maximum of five alternate 

members as outlined below:  

 

a) One person from the Central Okanagan Heritage Society Board;  

b) One person from the architectural field;  

c) One person from the construction industry;  

d) Interested private citizens.  

 

All new regular CoKHGP committee members receive an orientation prior to their attendance at their 

first grant committee meeting.  

 

The following lists the names of the 2013 CoKHGP committee members.  

Peter Chataway (Building Designer, Heritage Advocate)  

Julie Cosgrave (Writer, Heritage Advocate)  

Marietta Lightbody (Local Historian, Heritage Advocate)  

Ian Crichton (Retired Carpenter and Building Contractor)  

Shona Harrison, COHS Board Representative (UBCO and OC Professor, Heritage Advocate)  

Lorri Dauncey, Program Manager, non-voting (Heritage Conservation Expert) 

 

Randi Fox, alternate (Architect) 

Alasdair Smith, alternate (Building Contractor with speciality in heritage buildings and materials)  

Ben Lee, alternate (Founding Kelowna Heritage Foundation member, Retired City Councillor) 

R.J. Bennett, retired alternate (Founding Kelowna Heritage Foundation member, Retired Developer)   

Gordon Hartley, retired alternate (Retired Architect, Past Heritage BC Board Member)   

36



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 2 
 

*Janet Digby, Committee Chair (Architect), and Justin Hettinga, alternate (Engineer), left the committee in March 

2013 due to moves to other cities. Larry Foster had agreed to return to the grants committee, but due to personal 

reasons had to withdraw in the spring. 

 

Grant Summary:  

The City of Kelowna Heritage Grants program committee had four regular meetings (Refer to: Attached 

CoKHGP Regular Meeting Minutes for 2013) to review grant applications for heritage register buildings. 

During 2013, the grant committee approved thirteen (13) heritage grants for a total of $37,787.00. No 

grant applications received this year were declined because all the applications met the grant 

requirements and were considered good conservation projects. There was one grant application that 

was looked at by the committee at the September meeting that will be brought to the first meeting in 

2014 due to lack of grant funds available. In addition, a couple of building owners  did not apply for a 

grant this fall because the funds had already been allotted for the year.  There was one grant that was 

approved in March and then rescinded in June, as the homeowners informed the committee that they 

no longer wanted a grant for the project.  A total of $1,430.00 was returned to the program in 2013 due 

to the rescinded grant.  When approved grants were completed in 2013, there was a grant savings of 

$8,135.84.  Of these grant savings, $4,248.04 will go back into the program for 2014. Heritage grants 

awarded this year ranged from $1,115 to $5,000.  

 

A compilation of figures on the CoKHGP approved, declined and withdrawn grant applications for 2007 

(Kelowna Heritage Foundation), 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is provided. (Refer to: Appendix 

1: City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Applications 2007-2013)  

 

Grant Requests Reviewed ~ 2013 

 

1922 Abbott Street; Completed ($2,343 approved; paid out $1,206) 

A grant towards the prep and painting of the trims on the Fumerton House was approved at the March 

26th meeting. 

 

715 Sutherland Avenue; Active ($5,000 approved) 

A grant towards the stabilization, leveling and repair of the front and side porches on the Harvey House 

was approved at the March 26th meeting.  Note: At the November 12
th

 meeting, the owner requested that the 

grant approval be modified to include the side porch only.  This was approved by the grants committee. 

 

784 Elliot Avenue; Completed ($1,460) 

A grant towards the prep and painting of the two sides and back of the Copeland House was approved 

at the March 26th meeting. 

 

825 Lawrence Avenue; Completed ($3,520) 

A grant towards the prep and painting of the exterior of the Lawrence Avenue house was approved at 

the March 26th meeting. 

 

37



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 3 
 

3652 Spiers Road; Completed ($4,888 approved; paid out $4,329) 

A grant towards a new asphalt shingle roof (excluding the south side as it was replaced in 2005) on the 

Cross House was approved at the March 26th meeting. 

 

2124 Pandosy Street; Completed ($1,934 approved; paid out $1,369) 

A grant towards the prep and painting of the front steps, fire escape, veranda, sun deck trims and doors 

of the Cadder House was approved at the March 26th meeting. 

 

1449 Ethel Street; Completed ($1,115) 

A grant towards the cost of the repair and/or replacement (and painting) of the front stairs, posts and 

railings on the verandah and for the second story balcony railings, posts and some balusters on the Billy 

Lloyd House was approved at the March 26th meeting. 

 

469 Park Avenue; Active ($5,000 approved) 

A grant towards a new asphalt shingle roof for the Buck House was approved at the March 26th meeting. 

 

1858 Abbott Street; Rescinded ($1,430 approved) 

A grant towards new guard railings on the second floor front deck for the G.D. Loane House was 

approved at the March 26th meeting. 

 

368 Cadder Avenue; Completed ($5,000) 

A grant towards the cost of a new cedar shingle roof for the Dawson House was approved at the June 

11th meeting. 

 

721 Bernard Avenue; Active ($1,447 approved)) 

The grant application for the repair and/or replacement of the exterior deteriorated bricks on two areas 

of the First United Church and Hall was approved at the June 11th meeting. 

 

1922 Abbott Street; Active ($1,325 approved)) 

The grant application towards the repair and/or new flashings, eavestroughs and down pipes on the 

Fumerton House was approved at the June 11th meeting. 

 

1449 Ethel Street; Completed ($3,325) 

A grant towards the prep and painting of the wood trims and woodwork on the two sides and back of 

the Billy Lloyd House was approved at the September 17th meeting.    

 

4464 Lakeshore Road; (Moved to the April 1st, 2014 meeting) 

The grant application for the prep and painting of the W.D. Walker house was deferred until 2014 at the 

September 17th meeting, due to lack of funds. 

 

 

 

38



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 4 
 

CoKHGP Manager and Committee Activities: 

Committee Meetings and Follow up  

There were four Regular Meetings in 2013 (March 26th, June 11th, September 17th and November 12th) to 

consider grant applications and other program business. A significant amount of the manager’s time was 

spent preparing for each meeting (agenda, gathering up material and applications, ensuring a quorum), 

attending and recording the meeting, transcribing the minutes, writing letters to grant applicants re: the 

Committee’s decisions and any other follow up required.  

 

Committee Members  

The manager is responsible for ensuring that there is a full committee.  There were some committee 

changes this year.  Committee chair Janet Digby and alternate member Justin Hettinga both left the 

committee in March after getting jobs in other cities. Larry Foster had agreed to return to the grants 

committee as an alternate member, but due to personal reasons, had to withdraw in the spring.  

Alasdair Smith returned to the committee as an alternate member.  Randi Fox joined the committee as 

an alternate member at the June meeting.  There were five regular members and five alternate 

members (including two retired alternates) on the committee during 2013.  

 

Financials 

The manager pulled together a review of the Grant Program’s allotted funds prior to each meeting for 

the Committee’s information. This review indicated how much money had been allocated and how 

much was left for the rest of the year. The manager also updates the list of applications that includes the 

approved grant amount, the paid out amount, grant savings and if rescinded. 

 

Program and Heritage Inquiries  

The manager spent a significant amount of time each month answering e-mail and telephone inquiries 

about the grant program, new applications, approved applications and other heritage-related questions. 

In 2013, there were approximately 50 inquires (Note1) from property owners requesting information on 

the City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program and/or other heritage related questions. Some of these 

inquiries led to CoKHGP applications. Many people either do not end up applying or apply for a grant at 

a later date. With the various ways that the CoKHGP has been promoted to the public and specifically to 

Heritage Register Building Owners, we have seen a continued interest in the program. A significant 

portion of the Manager’s time is used to set up and update files on each inquiry by building address.  

 

(Note1: Each inquiry usually requires at least two to three (and many even more) phone calls, e-mails and even 

meetings to answer the various questions and concerns.)   

 

Administrative  

A significant amount of the manager’s time has gone into organizing the year, meetings with the COHS 

executive director and compiling the year-end report to the city.  

 

 

 

39



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 5 
 

Committee Communications  

The manager regularly passes on information to the grants committee on heritage events, workshops, 

forums, issues, etc. in Kelowna, the Okanagan and BC.  

 

Volunteer Appreciation Event  

The manager provided refreshments/appetizers after the November meeting to the committee 

members.  This provided the committee and manager some social time, in which the manager was able 

to thank the grants committee for their hard work and dedication to the program.  

 

Education and Awareness (“Getting the Word Out”): 

There were a couple of ‘educational’ opportunities that the committee and manager were able to take 

advantage of.  These included the following:  

*The manager has continued to build (and organize) a resource area for the use of the grant program 

(committee members and heritage building owners) and COHS. This collection of reference materials 

has been and will continue to be helpful in researching and recommending good conservation practice 

when dealing with heritage resources. (Note 2) 

*Heritage BC Annual Conference, held at the Shadbolt Centre in Burnaby on Oct 18th and 19th, 2013 was 

attended by a number of Kelowna people including  one of the committee members (at no cost to the 

program). (Note 3) 

*COHS put on a fall lecture series, in which two of the talks were aimed towards the heritage/character 

building owner.  The first talk in the series, Colour Matters, was given by two Benjamin Moore 

representatives and introduced by the manager.  The third talk in the series, Heritage Exposed, was 

given by two of the CoKHGP committee members and the manager. The talk series was well advertised 

to the general public, the COHS membership as well as to some heritage building owners. 

 

There were a number of opportunities to get out the word about the grant program in 2012. These 

activities included the following:  

 

*For the sixth year, a letter about the grant program was sent out to each building (owner in 2013) on 

the heritage register. The mail out was completed by the beginning of February 2013. 

* Peter Chataway gave a power point presentation (created by the program manager) on the grant 

program to City Council on February 18th 2013, during Heritage Week (Note 4), along with thanking 

council for their continued support for heritage grants in Kelowna. A number of committee members 

and the manager attended the council meeting to show their support. City council brought forward a 

motion to consider increasing the annual allotment grant for 2014 during the CoKHGP presentation. 

*The COHS executive director, Janice Henry, spoke about the grant program at the COHS~AGM on 

February 21st, during Heritage Week. 

*The media published a couple of articles in the local papers following the COHS ~ AGM and the City 

Council presentation.   

*Articles on the heritage grants program were included in the two COHS newsletters.  

*The manager, the committee, the COHS executive director, and the COHS Board took every 

opportunity to let the public know about the grants program. Opportunities included: Heritage Week 

40



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 6 
 

events including the Heritage Kick off Breakfast, the City Council presentation and COHS’s AGM & 

Heritage Awards Ceremony; COHS Fall Lecture Series. 

*On the COHS website, there is a link to the City of Kelowna website and the current CoKHGP Guidelines 

and Application form. There is also a page on the COHS website that has been dedicated to information 

about the grants program.  

 

(Note 2: The grant program has not renewed its membership in Heritage BC or with the Heritage Canada 

Foundation, due to funding cuts, however, the program still does receive the Heritage BC e-mails through COHS’ 

membership.)  

 (Note 3: The grant committee and manager continue to take part in heritage conferences and workshops on their 

own time and own expense. One of the committee members attended the Heritage BC conference in Burnaby in 

October. The committee continues to be very active heritage advocates in Kelowna, which is a huge benefit to the 

grants program.) 

(Note 4: Heritage Week offers a time for citizens across Canada to give recognition and pay special tribute to the 

heritage of their communities. The Heritage Week celebrations continue to be very successful and the many 

events that take place during the week provide the community with an opportunity to witness the strong 

commitment of Kelowna citizens towards raising awareness of the City’s heritage resources.)  

 

Recommendations for the Program ~ 2014:  

 

One of the recommendation of the CoKHGP committee members, Lorri Dauncey the program manager 

and Janice Henry COHS executive director is to increase the allotment grant until it reaches the amount 

recommended in the 2007/2008 Heritage Strategy. The committee recommends that the annual 

allotment continue to increase each year until it reaches $50,000. The program began in 1991 with 

$20,000 an amount that remained unchanged till 2009. The amount was increased to $30,000 in 2010. 

The last four years have shown that there is a demand for the grant money and that the program has 

the potential to continue to grow each year. (Note 5: The manager was informed in late January that the 

annual allotment from the city will be increased by $5,000 to $35,000) 

 

The second recommendation is to increase the administration amount, in order to allow more time for 

the manager to carry out an education component to the program.  A very successful heritage workshop 

was planned and carried out in 2011, with funding through Heritage BC’s workshop grant (we were the 

last group to receive a grant as the program has now been discontinued due to financial cuts).  Last Fall 

(2013), a couple of the committee members and the manager gave a talk on maintaining 

heritage/character buildings, which was of interest to heritage building owners.   However the 

committee and manager would like to continue offering workshops and/or lectures every year or two 

that would appeal to the heritage building owner and community in order to educate on good 

conservation practices. This would also continue the tradition of the Kelowna Heritage Foundation, who 

would periodically host workshops.   

 

 

 

 

41



City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Year End Report December 2013 Page 7 
 

Conclusion:  

 

As the manager of the City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program, I wish to acknowledge and thank the 

CoKHGP committee members for their dedication and service during the past year. I would also like to 

thank the City of Kelowna for the ongoing financial commitment that enables heritage property owners 

to undertake heritage conservation projects and maintain their heritage buildings.  

 

 

Ultimately heritage is not about things, but about cultural values and processes which are constantly in 

flux and need to be continually negotiated and renegotiated.  Alastair Kerr, BC Heritage Branch (retired 

after 38 years) 

 

 

Respectively Submitted,  

Lorri Dauncey, manager, CoKHGP  

MA (Urban Planning/ Heritage Conservation, Dip (Cultural Resource Management/ Heritage 

Conservation), BA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Appendix 1:  City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Applications 2007 to 2013 

Grant #     Address 
 

        Grant  Paid Out Savings       Notes        Amount  

          Awarded       Rescinded 

H07-103 1842 Abbott Street $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H07-107 721 Bernard Avenue $4,700.00 $4,700.00   Completed   

H07-104 2128 Leckie Place (Fleming House) $10,000.00 $10,000.00   Completed   

              

H08-101 2279 Benvoulin Road (Benvoulin Church) $4,100.00 $4,100.00   Completed   

H08-102 Abbott & Marshall Street Brochures $3,050.40 $3,050.40   Completed   

H08-103 3685 Benvoulin Road (Blacksmith's Shop) $2,100.00 $2,100.00   Completed   

H08-104 KSAN 100th B-day Party $1,000.00 $1,000.00   Completed   

H08-105 763 Bernard Street $5,000 $5,000.00   Completed   

H08-106 1024 Rutland Road $1,500.00 $1,500.00   Completed   

H08-107 OHS Online Index for Society Reports $1,500.00 $1,500.00   Completed   

              

H09-201 274 Bernard Avenue $2,772.00 $2,772.00   Completed   

H09-202 228 Lake Avenue $2,977.00 $2,977.00   Completed   

H09-203 1049 Borden Avenue       Declined   

H09-204 368 Cadder Avenue $2,700.00 $2,289.00 $411.00 Completed   

H09-205 1912 Abbott Street $3,037.00 $3,037.00   Completed   

H09-206 1060 Cameron Avenue (McDougall House) $5,388.00 $5,388.00   Completed   

H09-207 730 Lawson Avenue $2,363.00 $1,906.00 $457.00 Completed   

H09-208 1825 Richter Street $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H09-209 795 Lawrence Avenue $1,153.00 $1,153.00   Completed   

H09-210 3685 Benvoulin Rd ( Caretaker's Quarters) $2,835.00 $2,835.00   Completed   

H09-211 4870 Chute Lake Road ( Mallum Barn) $5,000.00     Rescinded June '11 $5,000.00 

H09-212 228 Vimy Avenue $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H09-213 1815 Maple Street $1,944.00 $1,184.00 $760.00 Completed   

H09-214 4464 Lakeshore Road $2,541.00 $2,482.00 $59.00 Completed   

43



Grant #     Address 
 

        Grant  Paid Out Savings       Notes        Amount  

          Awarded       Rescinded 

H09-215 845 Lawrence Avenue $735.00 $735.00   Completed   

H09-216 1842 Abbott Street $2,403.00 $1,393.00 $1,010.00 Completed   

H09-217     COHS Heritage Fall Fair       Withdrawn   

H09-218 2079 Pandosy Street $3,465.00 $3,465.00   Completed   

H09-219 
Father Pandosy Mission 150th 
Celebration $1,600.00 $1,600.00   Completed   

              

H10-301 757 Lawrence Avenue $1,250.00 $882.00 $368.00 Completed   

H10-302 250 Leathead Road $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H10-303 1788 Ethel Street $2,250.00     Rescinded June '11 $2,250.00 

H10-304 2124 Pandosy Street $1,800.00     Rescinded June '12 $1,800.00 

H10-305 710 Sutherland Avenue $2,500.00     Rescinded June '12 $2,500.00 

H10-306 2034 Pandosy Street $325.00 $325.00   Completed   

H10-307 567 Okanagan Boulevard $3,250.00 $2,570.00 $680.00 Completed   

H10-308  3685 Benvoulin Road (Father Pandosy Barn) $6,187.00 $6,187.00   Completed   

H10-309 4193 Gordon Drive $4,682.50 $4,682.50   Completed   

H10-310 1852 Water Street $5,000.00     Rescinded June 11 $5,000.00 

H10-311 1826 Maple Street $1,000.00 $1,000.00   Completed   

H10-312 858 Lawrence Avenue       Declined   

H10-313 429 Park Avenue $5,000.00     Rescinded Apr '11 $5,000.00 

              

H11-401 379 Park Avenue       Declined   

H11-402 2796 KLO Road $2,500.00     Rescinded Apr'12 $2,500.00 

H11-403 4856 Lakeshore Road $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H11-404 732 Dehart Avenue $2,125.00 $1,922.00 $203.00 Completed   

H11-405 2704 East Kelowna Road (Community Hall) $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H11-406 3685 Benvoulin Rd (McDougall House) $3,000.00 $3,000.00   Completed   

H11-407 429 Park Avenue $4,800.00 $4,800.00   Completed   

44



Grant #     Address 
 

        Grant  Paid Out Savings       Notes        Amount  

          Awarded       Rescinded 

H11-408  2083 Abbott Street $5,000.00  $1,984.66 $3,015.34 Completed   

H11-409 228 Vimy Avenue $2,182.00 $2,182.00   Completed   

H11-410 732 Sutherland Avenue $2,500.00 $2,472.11 $27.89 Completed   

H11-411 732 Sutherland Avenue $1,136.50  $612 $524.50  Completed   

H11-412 768 Dehart Avenue $3,100.00 $3,100.00   Completed   

H11-413 1869 Maple Street $4,500.00 $3,323.00 $1,177.00 Completed   

H11-414 732 Sutherland Avenue $1,391.39     Extension Mar ‘14   

H11-415 2139 Pandosy Street $3,790.00 $3,790.00   Completed   

H11-416 1852 Water Street       Declined   

H11-417 334 Beach Avenue $1,740.00 $1,603.00 $137.00 Completed   

H11-418 702 Bernard Avenue $0.00 $0.00  Moved to 2012   

       

H12-501 702 Bernard Avenue (formerly H11-418) $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H12-502 2796 KLO Road $3,750.00     Extension Mar ‘14   

H12-503 3685 Benvoulin Road (Christien House) $1,288.00 $897.00 $391.00 Completed   

H12-504 2779 Benvoulin Road (Benvoulin Church) $10,000.00 $10,000.00   Completed   

H12-505 334 Beach Avenue $2,660.00 $2,660.00   Completed   

H12-506 1978 McDougall Street $5,000.00     Extension Mar ‘14   

H12-507 4193 Gordon Drive $5,000.00  $2,665.00 $2,335.00  Completed   

H12-508 825 Lawrence Avenue $1,480.00  $1,480.00   Completed   

H12-509 784 Elliot Avenue $3,540.00  $3,540.00   Completed   

H12-510 796 Bernard Avenue $1,900.00  $1,900.00   Completed   

H12-511 1922 Abbott Street  $0.00 $0.00    Moved to 2013    

H12-512 715 Sutherland Avenue  $0.00 $0.00    Moved to 2013    

       

  
          

 

45



Grant #     Address 
 

        Grant  Paid Out Savings       Notes        Amount  

          Awarded       Rescinded 

H13-601 1922 Abbott Street (formerly H12-511) $2,343.00 $1,206.00  $1,137.00 Completed   

H13-602 715 Sutherland Avenue (formerly H12-511)  $5,000.00 
 

  due March ‘14   

H13-603 784 Elliot Avenue $1,460.00 $1,460.00   Completed   

H13-604  825 Lawrence Avenue  $3,520.00   $3,520.00   Completed   

H13-605 3652 Spiers Road $4,888.00 $4,329.00  $559.00 Completed   

H13-606 2124 Pandosy Street $1,934.00 $1,369.00  $565.00 Completed   

H13-607 1449 Ethel Street $1,115.00 $1,115.00   Completed   

H13-608 469 Park Avenue $5,000.00 
 

  due March ‘14   

H13-609 1858 Abbott Street $1,430.00 
 

  Rescinded June ‘13  $1,430.00 

H13-610 368 Cadder Avenue $5,000.00 $5,000.00   Completed   

H13-611 721 Bernard Avenue $1,447.00 
 

  due June ‘14   

H13-612  1922 Abbott Street  $1,325.00     due June ‘14   

H13-613 1449 Ethel Street $3,325.00 $3,325.00   Completed   

H13-614 4464 Lakeshore Road $0.00 $0.00   Moved to 2014   

  
      

 

  

      

  

  TOTALS $252,277.79 $190,067.67 $13,816.73   $25,480.00 

Jan '14 Grants still to pay out: $22,913.39           

      

  

    
  

 

  

    
  

 

  

    
  

 

  

   
    

  

    
  

 

  

      

  

      

  

       

 

46



 
 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
HERITAGE GRANTS 

PROGRAM  
(CoKHGP) 

47



 
 

48



 
 

49



 
 

50



 
 

51



 

THE BENEFITS COHS PROVIDES BY 
MANAGING THE CITY OF KELOWNA 

HERITAGE GRANTS PROGRAM:   
 

 

• Expertise in administration (7th year) 

• Grants Manager is a heritage consultant 

• Grants Committee is comprised of a select 

group of heritage specialists 

52



• Four Committee meetings a year 

• Committee members keep up to date on 

heritage issues in Kelowna, British Columbia 

and Canada 

• Answering inquires on heritage matters 

• Promoters for the program 

 

 53



GETTING THE WORD OUT: 

• Annual mail out to Heritage Register building owners 

• City Council presentation 

• COHS AGM display and during other COHS events 
throughout the year 

• COHS newsletters 

• Kelowna Residential Associations’ 

• City of Kelowna Website and COHS Website 

• Promoted at local events (i.e. Heritage Week, COHS Fall 
Lecture Series) 

 

54



GRANTS APPROVED 2007 - 2013  

Total Approved Grants 2007-2013       $252,277.79 

 

Total Grants Paid Out   $190,067.67 

Grants Outstanding   $22,913.39 

 

Total      $212,981.06 
 *$39,296.73   DIFFERENCE: due to grants rescinded & grant savings 

55



1922 Abbott Street 
$1,206 (New Paint) Completed 

$1,325 (Eaves Troughs and Soffit repair) Active 

   Before        After 

56



715 Sutherland 
$5,000 (Side Porch Conservation) Active 

57



784 Elliot Avenue 
$5,000 (Paint) Completed  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         Before     After 

58



825 Lawrence Avenue  
$3,520 (New Paint) Completed 

         Before      After 

59



3652 Spiers Road 
$4,888 (New Roof) Completed 

                        Before               After 

60



2124 Pandosy Street 
$1,369 (New paint) Completed 

61



1449 Ethel Street 
$4,440 (Porch & Deck Repairs and New Paint) 

Completed 

62



469 Park Avenue  
$5,000(New roof) Active 

63



368 Cadder Avenue 
$5,000 (New cedar shingle roof) Complete 

 

                           Before               During 

64



First United Church & Hall 
721 Bernard Avenue  

$1,447 (Brick repair) Active 

     

 

65



Two of the Projects Completed in 
2013 

  William Harvey House   Thomson Tobacco Barn 

66



We believe that heritage conservation is basic to 
quality of life and the sense of place that is distinctive 
to each community. Maintaining our heritage 
resources is a positive investment in the local economy 
and important stimulus to tourism. Heritage 
conservation should also be a part of a sustainable 
future. (Gail Salter, chair, Armstrong Heritage Advisory Committee, 2011) 

 

67



 
 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
HERITAGE GRANTS 

PROGRAM  
(CoKHGP) 

68



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 2/17/2014 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: 

 

A13-0016 

 

Owner: 

 

Parminder Singh Hans 

Kulwant Kaur Hans 

Address: 1454 Teasdale Road Applicant: Parminder Singh Hans 

Subject: Non-farm Use in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) 

Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A13-0016 for Lot A Section 23 TWP 26 
ODYD Plan 4697 Except Plans H12752 and KAP78750, located at 1454 Teasdale Road for a Non-
farm use, pursuant to Section 20 (3) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act (ALC Act), be 
supported by Municipal Council, subject to the following:  
 

a) the applicant register a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant on the subject property 
ensuring that the existing dwelling will only be used for either Farm Worker Housing 
(FWH), or Temporary Farm Worker Housing (TFWH), and shall be occupied only by a farm 
worker or temporary farm worker carrying out agricultural work on the Land, and that 
the proposed single family dwelling will only be inhabited by the applicant’s immediate 
family. 

 
AND THAT the Municipal Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission for consideration. 

2.0 Purpose 

The subject property is a mid-size (i.e. 6.5 ha / 16 acres) agricultural parcel in the Agricultural 
Land Reserve (ALR).  It is bounded on the north by a steep bench above Springfield Road, on the 
south by Teasdale Road and on the west side by Villa Vista Road.  There is an existing single 
family dwelling that is located at the southwest corner of the property which is used to house 
seasonal farm workers as the applicant currently farms approximately 21.9 ha (54 acres) in the 
area.  The applicant stores farm machinery in the attached garage of the existing house.  There 
are no other buildings or structures on the property.   

69



A13-0016 – Page 2 

 
 

The applicant is requesting approval to construct a single family dwelling near the northern end 
of the property that is on a steeper portion of land (approximately 30% slope) which he has 
indicated is difficult to cultivate and negotiate with farm equipment.  The access to the 
proposed new dwelling will be from Villa Vista Road along the existing dirt road currently being 
used for farm access.  If approved, the plan provided does indicate that the road is to be paved. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services  

The Agricultural Land Commission’s Policy #9, Additional Residences for Farm Use, states that 
local government may not approve more than one residence on a parcel of land unless the 
additional residences are necessary for farm use.  (Refer to Section 4.6 below).  The ALC Act and 
the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (the Regulation) do not 
regulate the number of residences per parcel, but all residences must be necessary for farm use.   

The City of Kelowna’s Official Community Plan (OCP)’s Objective 5.34 to ‘Preserve productive 
agricultural land1, Policy No. 3, outlines Homeplating, where buildings and structures, including 
farm help housing are located close to one another and, where appropriate, near the existing 
road frontage.  The applicant is proposing a site which is in the northeast quadrant of the 
orchard, whereas the existing house, currently used for temporary farm worker housing, is on 
Teasdale Road, in the southwest corner of the property.   

A site visit of the property by staff confirmed that the proposed building site is the steepest 
portion of the property (approximately 30%).  The slope will allow the garage to be placed at the 
lower level of the house, rather than at the side or in an accessory building.  The applicant has 
stated that the slope makes it difficult to cultivate (e.g. handle picking ladders and negotiate 
farm equipment). The southern portion of the property is fully planted in grapes, established for 
5 years, which provide a return for the applicant through a contract growing agreement with 
Gray Monk Winery.  The northeast quadrant has been cleared of older apple trees.  Outside of 
the proposed building site, the applicant intends to replant the area with grapes in a north / 
south configuration.  

The existing dwelling on Teasdale serves as temporary farm worker housing (TFWH).  The 
applicant has permits for 3 workers to arrive in March and 3 additional workers arrive in June.  
Additional workers will be hired for picking in the fall.  This will be the same number of workers 
hired in 2013.   The applicant currently leases and farms 39 acres (15.8 ha) of grapes and apples, 
in addition to the subject property.   The workers are required for the combined growing 
operation.  The applicant has a recent purchase agreement for his current residence, and intends 
to rent until a new home for his family can be built.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background / Project Description 

The purpose of this file is to consider the applicants proposal to construct a primary residence to 
house their immediate and extended family. The existing dwelling will continue to be used to 
house seasonal farm workers.  In 2004, a successful homesite severance was completed by the 
previous owners, now 1474 Teasdale Road, southwest of the property. 

If successful, the subject property would then contain two full dwellings.   

4.2 Site Context 

                                                
1
 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34 

70



A13-0016 – Page 3 

 
 

The subject property is located between Springfield Road and Teasdale Road on the western edge 
of the Belgo-Black Mountain Sector.  The site area is ~6.5 hectares (16 acres) and the elevation 
ranges from 450 to 467 masl. 

The properties to the east and south are agricultural and to the north and west are established 
residential neighbourhoods.  

Specifically, adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning ALR Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing No Single/Two Unit Residential 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Agricultural 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Agricultural 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing No Single/Two Unit Residential 

 

Subject Property Map: 1454 Teasdale Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

Homesite Severance (2004) 
 

Existing Dwelling 

71



A13-0016 – Page 4 

 
 

Photo 1 - Subject Property Looking East from Villa Vista Road – Currently planted in grapes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo 2 – Apple Trees (North) and Grapes (South) and Proposed Residence Site (looking east) 

 

 

Grape Vines 

Apple Trees 

Proposed 
Residence Site 

Existing Road / 
Equipment Turnaround 

72



A13-0016 – Page 5 

 
 

Photo 3 – Existing Dwelling for Temporary Farm Worker Housing 

 

Photo 4 – Proposed Water Line Location along East Property Line (looking south) 

 

73



A13-0016 – Page 6 

 
 
 

4.2.1 Agricultural Capability/Soil Type(s) 

Based on Canada Land Inventory information (see attached Maps), the subject property is thought 
to be comprised of mainly two soil types including Oyama (OY) and Rutland (R).  More 
specifically, it is expected that the southern portion (~42% of the property) is 100% Oyama, while 
the northern portion of the subject property (~55% of the property) is comprised of almost 100% 
Rutland. 

Rutland soils are defined as very gently to strongly sloping fluvioglacial deposits consisting of 10 
to 25cm of sandy loam or loamy sand over gravelly loamy sand or very gravelly sand with 
drainage cited as rapid. 

Oyama soils are defined as very gently to extremely sloping fluvioglacial deposits, 100cm or more 
of sandy loam or loamy sand grading to sand with drainage also cited as rapid. 

 

Agricultural Production (Current & Proposed) 

The property owners note in their submission that they have removed old trees and planted wine 
grapes for a large portion of the property.  The grape vines are now 5 years old and are in full 
production, under contract for Gray Monk Winery.  The applicant also has apple trees in the 
northwest section.  Approximately 20% of the property has been cleared.  In addition to the 
proposed home site in this location, they intend to replant the remaining cleared area in grapes. 

 

4.3 Farm Worker Housing Criteria 

In accordance with the Discussion Paper and Standards for Regulating Temporary Farm Worker 
Housing in the ALR, Discussion Paper and Standards (Sustainable Agricultural Management 
Branch, MAL, March 2009), the definitions for farm workers and farm worker housing are noted 
below. 

“farm worker housing” (FWH) means one (1) accommodation unit that is used solely for the 
purpose of providing cooking, sanitary, and sleeping facilities to house farm worker(s) on a 
farm operation, necessary for the agricultural labour needs of a farm operation or other 
farms, if permitted. 
 
“farm worker” means an individual or individuals who carry out agricultural work on a farm 
operation on a full-time basis. 
 
“temporary farm worker housing” (TFWH) means one (1) accommodation unit that is used 
solely for the purpose of providing cooking, sanitary, and sleeping facilities to temporarily 
house temporary farm worker(s) on a farm operation as necessary for the agricultural labour 
needs of a farm operation or other farms, if permitted. 
 
“temporary farm worker” means an individual or individuals who carry out agricultural work 
on a seasonal basis on a farm operation and may or may not be registered with a Canadian 
federal government temporary worker program. 

 

 

74



A13-0016 – Page 7 

 
 

5.0      Current Development Policies 

 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The subject property has a future land use designation of Resource Protection Area and relevant 
policies are included below: 

Objective 5.33 Protect and enhance local agriculture2. 

Policy. 1 Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and 
by protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of 
Kelowna Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is agriculture, 
regardless of parcel size. 

Policy .7 Non-farm Uses. Support non-farm use applications on agricultural lands only where 
approved by the ALC and where the proposed uses: 

 are consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and OCP; 

 provide significant benefits to local agriculture; 

 can be accommodated using existing municipal infrastructure; 

 minimize impacts on productive agricultural lands; 

 will not preclude future use of the lands for agriculture; 

 will not harm adjacent farm operations. 

Objective 5.34 Preserve productive agricultural land3. 

Policy .3 Homeplating. Locate buildings and structures, including farm help housing and farm 
retail sales area and structures, on agricultural parcels in close proximity to one another and 
where appropriate, near the existing road frontage. The goal should be to maximize use of 
existing infrastructure and reduce impacts on productive agricultural lands. 

 

5.2 City of Kelowna Agricultural Plan 

ALR Application Criteria4 

Exclusion, subdivision, or non-farm use of ALR lands will generally not be supported.  General 
non-support for ALR applications is in the interest of protecting farmland through retention of 
larger parcels, protection of the land base from impacts of urban encroachment, reducing land 
speculation and the cost of entering the farm business, and encouraging increased farm 
capitalization. 

5.2 Agricultural Land Commission 

ALC has no limit on the number of residences permitted on a parcel, but all residences must be 
required for farm use.  The policies which outline residential use are outlined below. 

Policy #9 – Additional Residences for Farm Use5 

Agricultural Land Commission Act, 2002, Section 18 

                                                
2 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.33.  
3 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future (2011), Development Process Chapter; p. 5.34.  
4 City of Kelowna, 1998. City of Kelowna Agriculture Plan (1998); p. 130 
5
 BC Reg., 2002.  Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002); Policy #9 

75



A13-0016 – Page 8 

 
 

18 Unless permitted by this Act, the regulations or the terms imposed in an order of the commission, 

  
(a) a local government, or an authority, a board or another agency established by it or a person 

or an agency that enters into an agreement under the Local Services Act may not 

  
(ii) approve more than one residence on a parcel of land unless the additional residences 

are necessary for farm use 

 

Policy # 8 - Permitted Uses in the ALR:  Residential Use6 

Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002), the "Regulation", 
Section 3 (1) (b) 

Section 3 (1) "the following land uses are permitted in an agricultural land reserve unless otherwise 
prohibited by a local government bylaw: 

  (b) for each parcel, 

  
(i) one secondary suite within a single family dwelling, and 

  
(ii) one manufactured home, up to 9 m in width, for use by a member of the 

owner’s immediate family; 

Section 1 (1) "immediate family" means, with respect to an owner, the owner’s 

 
(a) parents, grandparents and great grandparents, 

 
(b) spouse, parents of spouse and stepparents of spouse, 

 
(c) brothers and sisters, and 

 
(d) children or stepchildren, grandchildren and great grandchildren; 

 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Engineering Department will provide detailed comments should the ALC agree 
to the residential construction on the subject property. (See attached) 

6.2 Interior Health Authority 

See attached. 

6.3 Irrigation District 

The property water service is through the Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID).  No specific 
comments were received on the application from the BMID.  However, staff understands that the 
BMID service runs along and parallel to Teasdale Road.  There is an access road along the east 
side of the property through which a water line could be placed. (See Photo 4, above).   
 
The property is along the boundary of the BMID water service area and the Rutland Water District 
(RWD).  The residences along Villa Vista Road are serviced by the RWD.  Servicing the proposed 
house from Villa Vista Road would require a water service area boundary adjustment and 
associated process and legal costs.  There is also potential the RWD would not have capacity to 

                                                
6
 BC Reg., 2002.  Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation (BC Reg. 171/2002); Policy #8 

 

76



A13-0016 – Page 9 

 
 

service the irrigation needs of the orchard.  Therefore, the applicant will continue to have water 
service through BMID rather than through RWD. 
 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: December 4, 2013 
 

Agricultural Advisory Committee December 12, 2013 and January 23, 2014 

The above noted application was originally reviewed by the Agricultural Advisory Committee 
(AAC) at the meeting on December12, 2013.  However, due to staff changes the applicant was 
not advised and so the file was referred back to the AAC on January 23, 2014 in order to give the 
applicant an opportunity to be present, speak to his application and respond to questions. The 
application was not supported by the AAC.  Concerns noted by members included: 

 Proposed site location with respect to homeplating policies 

 Concern that the water line would require the removal of grapes 

The AAC put forward and passed the motion as noted below. 

 

MOVED BY Yvonne/SECONDED BY Gill 
 

THAT the Agricultural Advisory Committee recommends that Council NOT support 
Agricultural Land Reserve Appeal Application No. A13-0016 for the property located at 
1454 Teasdale Road, Kelowna, BC for an application to the Agricultural Land Commission 
under Section 20(3) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act for a “non-farm use” within 
the Agricultural Land Reserve to allow for a second dwelling on the subject property. 
 

CARRIED 
Bob & Ed – Opposed 

 
ANECDOTAL COMMENT: 
The Agricultural Advisory Committee is recommending non-support as the Committee expressed a 
concern with the proposed location of the new dwelling and suggested that the new dwelling be 
consistent with the homeplating along Teasdale Road rather than in the middle of the orchard. 
 

Staff conducted a site visit following the AAC to gather further information on site conditions.  It 
was noted during the site visit that the proposed building location was on the most significant 
slope on the property (Photo 2, above).  It was also noted that there was space along the east 
property line to allow the water line without the removal of grapes (Photo 4, above).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



A13-0016 – Page 10 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Manager, Environment & Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Director, Land Use Management 
 

Attachments: 

Site Location  

ALR Map  
Application – ALC 
Letter from Applicant 
Site Plan for Proposed House 
Land and Soil Capability Maps (2 pages) 
Proposed Building Layout Plan 

78



79



80



83



84



85



86



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 3rd, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services, Community Planning and 
Real Estate (DB) 

Application: OCP13-0020 / Z13-0043 Owner: 
No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. 

City of Kelowna 

Address: 1055 Frost Road Applicant: No. 21 Great Projects 

Subject: OCP Amendment & Rezoning Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: 
Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density, Single / Two Unit 
Residential  

Proposed OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zones: A1 – Agriculture 1, RU1H – Large Lot Housing Hillside 

Proposed Zones: RU3 – Small Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0020 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing part of the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot A, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618 Except Plans EPP9638, EPP15721, EPP18670, 
EPP20408, EPP22118, and EPP33403 located at 1055 Frost Road from Multiple Unit Residential – 
Low Density to Single / Two Unit Residential as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services, dated January 20, 2014, be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0043 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of part of Lot A, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618 Except 
Plans EPP9638, EPP15721, EPP18670, EPP20408, EPP22118 and EPP33403, located at 1055 Frost 
from A1 – Agriculture 1 and RU1H – Large Lot Housing Hillside zones to the RU3 – Small Lot 
Housing zone as shown on Map “B” attached to the report of the Subdivision, Agriculture & 
Environment Services, dated January 20, 2014, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment and the Zone Amending Bylaw be 
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

87



OCP13-0020 / Z13-0043 – Page 2 

 
 

 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review by the City of Kelowna’s Subdivision Approving Officer.  

2.0 Purpose  

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation and to rezone the northern 
section of the subject property to accommodate the development of a single family subdivision. 

3.0     Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Services comments 

The northern section of the subject property currently has two future land use designations 
under the current Official Community Plan (OCP).  The eastern portion is designated for 
Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) and the western portion is designated for Multiple Unit 
Residential (Low Density)(MRL).  The current zoning shares the same boundaries with the western 
portion zoned for Agriculture (A1) and the eastern portion zoned for Large Lot Housing (Hillside 
Area)(RU1H).   

 
The applicant is proposing to amend the OCP designation from the MRL designated portion of the 
property to S2RES and to rezone the entire property to Small Lot Housing (RU3), to facilitate the 
construction of approximately 29 single family lots.   
 
Staff is generally supportive of the OCP amendment and rezoning applications that have been 
submitted to accommodate the development of this proposed single family residential 
subdivision.  However, staff acknowledge that there will be a slight reduction in the density of 
this area as a result of this proposal.  As the subject property is adjacent to a future school and is 
partially within the South Gordon village centre where higher density residential development is 
desired.  Therefore, Staff would encourage the developer to consider relocating the density to an 
appropriate location elsewhere within The Ponds development.   
 
4.0     Proposal  

4.1 Project Description 

In the OCP and Area Structure Plan for Neighborhood 3 of “The Ponds” development, a portion of 
the site had originally been envisioned to be part of a larger multi-family site.  However, due to 
planning refinements in the area, such as the relocation of the school site and road realignments, 
a portion of the multi-family site became fragmented and isolated.   
 
The applicant is proposing to amend the OCP designation from the MRL portion to S2RES and to 
rezone the entire northern portion of property to Small Lot Housing (RU3) to facilitate the 
construction of approximately 29 single family lots.   
 
Although this development will be adjacent to two major roads, the developer’s intent is to 
create a neighborhood with an internal focus.  Access to the neighborhood will be provided by a 
road directly off of the existing cul-de-sac at the end of Steele Road.  Driveway access from the 
internal road and lane will reduce pedestrian/vehicular conflicts in front of the school and buffer 
residences from school activity.  Although internally focused, the developer will develop housing 
with welcoming entrances and porches that will front Steele Road.   
 

88



OCP13-0020 / Z13-0043 – Page 3 

 
 

An emergency access will also be provided directly to Steele Road.  This emergency access will 
provide a convenient pedestrian approach to the park and school for area residents and 
surrounding communities. 
 
4.2 Site Context 
 
Subject Property Map: 
 

 
 

The subject property is located in the south end area of town in a predominantly single family 
neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P3 – Parks & Open Space Trail Corridor  

East P2 – Education and Minor Institutional School site 

South A1 –Agricultural Zone Multiple Unit Residential 
West C3 – community Commercial Commercial 

   

5.0      Technical Comments 

 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

     Infrastructure Planning – Parks & Public Spaces 

89



OCP13-0020 / Z13-0043 – Page 4 

 
 

For proposed lots that share a common property line with the community park site to the 
north, the Developer is required to install a 1.2 metre high black vinyl coated chain link 
fence (to City specifications) that is located 15 centimetres (6 inches) inside the private 
property lines.   

 

Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: November 21, 2013  
Public Notification Received:  January 31, 2014 

 

Report prepared by: 

      
Damien Burggraeve, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 

 

Attachments: 

Map A 
Map B 
Subject Property Map 
Site Photos 
Lot Layout 
Development Engineering Requirements 
Public Consultation – Letter from School District 23 
 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 2/5/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning Department 

Application: Z14-0003 Owner: Richard & Michelle Kooistra  

Address: 4377 Gordon Dr. Applicant: Richard & Michelle Kooistra 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0003 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, District Lot 358, ODYD, Plan 21365, located on 4377 
Gordon Drive, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements 
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.  

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject property from RU1 – Large Lot Housing to RU6 – Two 
Dwelling Housing to allow a second dwelling on the parcel. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department  

Staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow the second dwelling on the subject 
property. The proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use 
designation for the area, and fits well within the existing neighbourhood context. There are some 
examples of RU6 & RU1c developments in the immediate area. The adjacent property to the 
south is zoned RU1c and has a carriage house located at the rear of the property. 

The application does not trigger any variances to the Zoning Bylaw and should the land use be 
supported, a Development Permit to evaluate the form and character of the proposal will be 
processed by staff. 

110



Z14-0003 – Page 2 

 
 

The proposed secondary dwelling will have a larger floor area than the principal dwelling but will 
be shorter in height. The proponent is requesting to rezone to RU6 rather than RU1c because 
they wish to have a secondary dwelling larger than a maximum allowed as a carriage house (90 
m2 or 75% of the principal building) which in this case would limit a carriage house to 81 m2. The 
proposed secondary dwelling is 168 m2. The subject property is quite large and can easily handle 
the additional 168 m2 secondary dwelling at the rear of the property.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation from neighbouring parcels. Two 
neighbours declined to sign the proponents’ form which stated “as a proximity neighbour I have 
no objections to the proposed development.” 

4.2 Project Description 

The subject property presently contains one single detached dwelling and accessory building on 
the eastern side of the lot. The applicant is proposing a rezoning of the property to RU6 – Two 
Dwelling Housing in order to allow a second dwelling on the parcel. The existing dwelling is to 
remain on the property and the accessory building will be removed. 

The applicant anticipates a stratification of the two dwellings which will trigger improvements to 
the existing dwelling in order to meet the current building code. Parking for the existing dwelling 
is located in an existing carport. The proposed secondary dwelling will built in the rear of the 
property and will have driveway access along the south property line. 

The proposed secondary dwelling is a single story slab-on-grade building with a larger floor area 
than the existing principal building and done in neutral colours to blend in with the existing 
properties. The design of the secondary home is contemporary with a killion roofline similar in 
style to the secondary home on the adjacent parcel. The design is intended to achieve the 
following: 

 One story floor plan so as to not obstruct views/sightlines of adjacent neighbours. 

 Relatively small footprint size and south-western housing orientation to take advantage of 
passive solar heating and lighting which will reduce the proponent’s draw on electrical 
and natural gas resources. 

 Xeriscaping using native plants to reduce water maintenance requirements. 

 Provide in-home environmental features for efficient heating and ventilation to improve 
air quality for allergy suffers. Clerestory windows provide natural light and aid in 
ventilation during hot summer weather. 

 Grass-crete driveway to reduce heat retention and solar reflection in the hot summer 
season. 

 Provide a streamlined minimalist exterior look that connects the indoor and outdoor space 
with a front porch element  

A Development Permit to evaluate the form and character and landscaping of the proposed 
secondary dwelling is required, and will be executed at a staff level. Should the existing dwelling 
ever redevelop, a separate Development Permit will be required at that time. 

 

111



Z14-0003 – Page 3 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is approximately 2,499 m2 in area. The OCP designates the subject property 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential and the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary.  

The surrounding area is characterized principally by a mix of low density single family and 
secondary dwelling unit development in various housing forms including duplex, secondary 
dwelling, and carriage house.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling development 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling development 

South RU1c – Two Dwelling Housing 
Single detached dwelling and carriage 
house development 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling development 

 

Subject Property Map: 4377 Gordon Dr. 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 700 m2 (duplex) 2,499 m2 

Lot Width 18.0 m 29.2 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 102 m 

Development Regulations 

 Both dwellings 
Existing Principal 

dwelling 
Second 

Dwelling (new) 

Height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 5.8 m 4.5 m 

Front Yard 4.5 m 23.8 m exceeds 

Side Yard (south) 2.0 m 7.9 m 3.6 m 

Subject Property 

112



Z14-0003 – Page 4 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 
Side Yard (north) 2.0 m 5.4 m 2.0 m 

Rear Yard 6.0 m Exceeds 12.1 m 

Site coverage of buildings  40 % 14.8 % 

Site coverage of buildings, 
driveways & parking 

50 % 29.2 % 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
2 stalls / dwelling = 4 stalls 2 2 

Distance  between 
dwellings 

4.5 m 22.3 m 

Private Open Space 30 m2 / dwelling (duplex only) Exceeds 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Complete Suburbs.2 Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs (see Map 5.1 - Urban Core 
Area), in accordance with “Smart Growth” principles to ensure complete communities. Uses that 
should be present in all areas of the City (consistent with Map 4.1 - Future Land Use Map), at 
appropriate locations, include: commercial, institutional, and all types of residential uses 
(including affordable and special needs housing) at densities appropriate to their context. 
Building heights in excess of four storeys will not be supported within the suburban areas, unless 
provided for by zoning existing prior to adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500. 

Permanent Growth Boundary.3 Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. The City of Kelowna will support development of property outside the Permanent 
Growth Boundary for more intensive use only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land 
Use designations in place as of initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except for Agri-Business 
designated sites or as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy. The Permanent Growth 
Boundary may be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 

Sensitive Infill.4 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

113



Z14-0003 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12).  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: January 15th 2014 
Date of Public consultation: December 4th 2013 to January 27th 2014 (see Consultation 

summary in attachments) 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Zoning Analysis Table 
Development Engineering Comments 
Consultation Summary 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 17, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning &Real Estate (AR) 

Application: DP13-0197 Owner: 
Watermark Developments 
Ltd., Inc. No. BC0642787 

Address: 945 Academy Way Applicant: Meiklejohn Architects Inc. 

Subject: Development Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0197 for Lot B, Section 10, 
Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP16167, located at 945 Academy Way, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general  
           accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
           accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C", which 
           is to be sealed by a Landscape Architect in good standing prior to permit issuance; 
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
           in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
           landscaping, as determined by a professional Landscape Architect; 
 
5. The applicant be required to satisfy the requirements of the Glenmore Ellison Irrigation 

District (GEID); 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 

  

128



DP13-0197 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider the form and character of the proposed 3 storey, 66 unit residential building and 
associated landscaping and site works on the subject property, in the University South Area.  

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Following the initial development of the Academy Hill mixed-use development located 
immediately north of the subject property, the proposed building is the third to be developed as 
part of the University South Area. Urban Planning is supportive of the proposed development as it 
is generally consistent with the applicable Development Permit Guidelines contained in the 
Official Community Plan (OCP) as well as the University Village Master Plan.  

The proposed building fits well into the proposed overall scheme of development for the Village 
Centre, and will provide an attractive street frontage along Academy Way and the multi-use 
corridor through an articulated built form and layered landscaping. The design has thoughtfully 
responded to the challenges of the sloping site, and landscaping is used effectively to integrate 
the building into the surrounding natural setting and to minimize exposed retaining features. 
Critical to a student population and to encouraging pedestrian movement in general, onsite 
walkways have been designed to allow residents to move safely and efficiently through the site 
and to connect to public walkways to the west and to the east. All units are provided with ample 
private open space in balconies and yards, as well as access to ground-level community garden 
and outdoor amenity areas.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The University South Area Structure Plan (ASP) was originally approved in January 1998, and was 
subsequently revised in February 2007 to reflect changes in the status of the University. The 
University South Area was rezoned and subdivided in 2011 in order to allow development of the 
area to proceed. The proposed development represents the third building to be developed as 
part of the new University South Area. 

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed 3-storey development consists of 66 residential units targeted principally for 
students and staff of the adjacent UBC Okanagan campus. The building is located on a site with 
significant constraints both in terms of grade, sloping down to the north and to the east, and a 
substantial Fortis Right-of-Way adjacent to Academy Way. The building’s location and siting are 
informed by these constraints and the site’s natural contour. The building is oriented lengthwise 
running roughly east-west, with the main building entrance located centrally on the north side of 
the building. Particular attention has been paid to the west, street-facing building elevation and 
site entrance landscaping to create a strong frontage along Academy Way.  

The site is accessed from Academy Way via a gentle, upward sloping, curved driveway, creating 
opportunity for a landscaped feature entry to the site. Parking for the site is split between 
below-grade, under-building parking and surface parking at grade. A total of 100 parking spaces 
are provided, with 66 under building and 34 in a surface parking area (including 10 visitor 
spaces). Access to the under-building parking area is taken from the north side of the building, 
via an entrance at the west end of the building. The surface parking area is divided by a central 
plaza/turnaround in front of the building’s main entrance, and with a landscaped bio-swale 
feature at its centre. 

129



DP13-0197 – Page 3 

 
 

The 66 residential units within the building are comprised of a mix of studios, and one, two, and 
three bedroom units, with 38 of the total being two bedroom units. The unit sizes range from 
46.5 m2 for a studio unit to 100 m2 for a three bedroom unit, for a total building Gross Floor Area 
(GFA) of 5,993 m2. Each unit has a private balcony or yard, and access to community garden and 
outdoor amenity areas. 

The proposed building is designed in a “campus modern” style to complement the character of 
the recently constructed buildings at the UBC Okanagan campus, Aberdeen Hall, and the 
Academy Hill mixed-use development. The proposed building incorporates contemporary forms 
and massing, with a flat roof structure, and strong horizontal and vertical linear elements. This 
aesthetic is matched with warmer finishes, including alternating brick and hardie siding. A 
modern design element projects beyond the building’s primary elevation to visually highlight the 
main building entrance and draw people to the centre of the building. A robustly landscaped, 
bermed feature runs along the building’s north elevation at grade to enhance this primary facade 
and to conceal the under-building parking structure.   

With a total site coverage of only 21% (for building and vehicular areas), a substantial portion of 
the site is to remain naturalized or landscaped. In the areas around the building and most 
frequently used by pedestrians, plantings will include a mix of deciduous and coniferous trees, 
native shrubs and grasses, and perennials. For the sloped area to the east of the building, 
coniferous trees and natural grasses will dominate in a more natural landscape setting. Under the 
concurrently processed Natural Environment Development Permit application, this area will be 
restored and protected through a management plan and registration of a no disturbance 
covenant. The need for retaining walls has been minimized through the careful siting of 
development and integration with landscaping. Walkway connections have been incorporated on 
the site, both to the Academy Way multi-use corridor to the west and down to the naturalized 
area and public pathway beyond to the east. 

Given the anticipated primarily student occupancy of the proposed development and overall 
reduced levels of corresponding vehicle ownership, an application to vary parking may be 
contemplated at a later date. Were a variance to come forward, it would provide opportunity to 
augment ground-level, outdoor common amenity space for the building’s residents. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north facing slope of the developing University South Area, 
on the east side of Academy Way across from Aberdeen Hall, and south of John Hindle Drive and 
the UBC Okanagan campus.  

Presently, the adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C3 – Community Commercial Mixed Use Development 

East A1 – Agricultural 1 Agricultural / Vacant 

South RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Forested / Vacant 

West P2 – Educational & Minor Institutional Aberdeen Hall / School 

 

  

130



DP13-0197 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 945 Academy Way 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The proposal compares to the RM4 zone requirements as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM-4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 900 m2  Approx. 20,156 m2 (2.02 ha) 

Lot Width 30 m Approx. 111 m 

Lot Depth 30 m Approx. 241 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 with 0.13 bonus  0.26 

Site Coverage (buildings) 50% 11.4% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways, parking areas) 

60% 21.0% 

Height Lesser of 13 m or 3 storeys 13 m and 3 storeys 

Front Yard 6 m (if more than 2 storeys) 34.8 m 

Side Yard (north) 4.5 m (if more than 2 storeys) 44.5 m 

Side Yard (south) 4.5 m (if more than 2 storeys) 9.0 m 

Rear Yard 9.0 m (if more than 2 storeys) 69.2 m 

  

Subject 
Property 

131



DP13-0197 – Page 5 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table (cont.) 

CRITERIA RM-4 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Other Regulations 
Min. Parking Requirements 100 spaces 100 spaces 

Min. Setback for  Vehicular 
Parking 

3.0 m from any street 
1.5 m from any side property line 

Meets requirements 

Bicycle Parking 
Class 1: 0.5/unit (33 spaces)      
Class 2: 0.1/unit (7 spaces) 

66 Class 1 spaces (in parkade) 
8 Class 2 spaces 

Visitor Parking 10 spaces 10 spaces (at surface) 

Private Open Space 1,438 m2  2,230 m2 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process (Chapter 5) - Considerations in Reviewing Development Applications 

Objective 5.8. Achieve high quality urban design. 

Objective 5.10. Ensure opportunities are available for greater use of active transportation and 
transit to: improve community health; reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and increase resilience 
in the face of higher energy prices. 

Policy 5.10.1. Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and private 
sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of frequently 
used connections and informal pedestrian routes.  

Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Comprehensive Design Guidelines 
 
Objectives: 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna; 
 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development that 

is coordinated with existing structures; 
 Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character amenities 

of the surrounding area; 
 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 
 Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 

living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 
 Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 

area’s character; 
 Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages; 
 Protect and restore the urban ecology (i.e. architectural and site consideration with respect 

to the ecological impact on urban design). 
 Moderate urban water demand in the City so that adequate water supply is reserved for 

agriculture and for natural ecosystem processes. 
 Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the Cit by a target of 30%, 

when compared to 2007. 
  

132



DP13-0197 – Page 6 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1. Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permit(s). 

2. Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. The 
location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application. 

3. A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit applications, 
but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 
a. Hard surface paths are to be provided from the exit stairwells to the street 
b. Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in the code 

analysis by the architect. 
c. Access to the roof is required per NFPA and guard rails may be required and should be 

reflected in the plans if required.  
d. Fire department to comment of driveway access and turn radius requirements. 
e. Retaining walls to be defined in the drawings and separate permits will be required. 

Retaining walls must be designed to be solely on the property unless easements have been 
obtained. 

4. A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage.  
5. Guards are required for all decks. The drawings provided don’t clearly identify these 

requirements, but will be reviewed at time of building permit application. 
6. Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure room(s). 

The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how this rating will be 
achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

7. Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit. This 
should include the signage required for the building addressing to be defined on the drawings 
per the bylaws. 

8. Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Memorandum dated January 20, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

1. Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900.  

2. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec flow.  
3. The main access road to the front entrance shall be constructed as per BCBC 3.2.5.6.  
4. A Construction Fire Safety Plan is required and shall be submitted prior to start of 

construction.  
5. Additional comments will be required with the building permit application. 

6.4 Glenmore Ellison Irrigation District (GEID) 

Refer to attached GEID letter dated February 7, 2014. 

6.5 NAV CANADA 

NAV CANADA has no objection to the project as submitted.  

  

133



DP13-0197 – Page 7 

 
 

6.6 Shaw Cable 

Owner/developer to install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings and 
specifications. 

6.7 Telus 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development.  Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: December 19, 2013 

Revised Plans Received:  February 6, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

 
     

Abigail Riley, Planner II 
Urban Planning  
 
 

Reviewed by:          Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:     Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning & 
Real Estate 

 

Attachments: 

Site Plan 
Building Elevations 
Axonometric Drawings 
Floor Plans 
Landscape Plans & Details 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated January 20, 2014 
GEID Letter, dated February 7, 2014 

134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 17, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (JM) 

Application: DP14-0005 Owner: 
Hywood Contractors Ltd. 
(Inc. No. 119078) 

Address: 1517-1541 Keehn Road Applicant: Callahan Property Group 

Subject: Development Permit Application   

Existing OCP Designation: SC – Service Commercial 

Existing Zone: C10 – Service Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0005 for Lot A, District 
Lot 125, ODYD, Plan EPP36652, located on 1517-1541 Keehn Road, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following:  
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”;  
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”;  
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”;  
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in 
the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, 
as determined by a professional landscaper;  
 
AND THAT the requirements of the Development Engineering Branch and the Rutland Waterworks 
District be completed to their satisfaction prior to issuance; 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition number 
four (#4) within 180 days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order 
for the permit to be issued. 

 

157



DP14-0005 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a Development Permit to evaluate the form and character of a proposed automotive 
service centre against the guidelines established in the Official Community Plan. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Urban Planning staff are supportive of the proposed service commercial development on the site. 
Given the typically utilitarian nature of service commercial buildings, the proposed development 
represents an elevated standard of design along the visually significant Highway 97N corridor. 
The design relies on glazing to make the building feel more welcoming and pleasant both for staff 
and patrons, and the landscape design accentuates the building architecture while also providing 
screening for the vehicle parking. 

Overall, the development meets the design guidelines established in the Official Community 
Plan, and will be a pleasant addition to the area. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to develop an automotive service building on the westernmost portion 
of the subject property, fronting both Highway 97 and Keehn Road. The proposed building is 
approximately 689 m2 in floor split between a main floor and a small second floor. The main floor 
contains 10 service bays, 1 car wash bay (BCAA clients only), and customer service and 
administration areas. The second floor is only approximately 82 m2 in area and contains storage 
and staff areas. Access for the site is taken from Keehn Road, and a total of 23 parking stalls are 
spread evenly around the perimeter of the site, with secure bicycle parking at the rear.  

In terms of form and character, the building represents a new standard for design for BCAA 
across the province (see attached letter of rationale). The building makes use of a large amount 
of glazing placed strategically to give the impression of openness and transparency, even in the 
service bays themselves. Glazing is matched with exterior cladding in the form of aluminium 
panels and horizontal corrugated metal, both of which convey a clean and more modern 
aesthetic. Floor to ceiling glass and a canopy feature accentuate the building entrance.  

The north and west sides of the site will be landscaped in accordance with the Zoning Bylaw 
standards, including a mix of trees, shrubs, grasses and perennial plantings. The south side of the 
site will be fenced from the adjacent tourist commercial development.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of the intersection of Highway 97N and Keehn 
Road. The lot is zoned C10 – Service Commercial and presently contains a single storey 
commercial building with multiple tenants. Within the entire 8,463m2 lot, the development 
proposal is limited to the westernmost portion. 

Development surrounding the lot is characterized by a mix of highway oriented service 
commercial, tourist commercial, and residential.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C10 – Service Commercial Bed, Bath and Beyond 

East C10 – Service Commercial  Various commercial businesses 

158



DP14-0005 – Page 3 

 
 

South 
C9 – Tourist Commercial  
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing 

Motel 
Large Lot Single Detached Dwellings 
Four-plex Housing 

West C10 – Service Commercial  Auto sales 

 

Subject Property Map: 1517-1541 Keehn Road 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C10 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 1,000 m2 8,463 m2 

Lot Width 40.0 m exceeds 

Lot Depth 30.0 m Approx. 47.0-54.0 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 0.32 

Site Coverage 60% 31% 

Height Lesser of 12.0 m or 3 storeys 2 storeys / 7.35 m 

Front Yard (north) 2.0 m 16.4m 

Side Yard (east) 0.0 m 8.0 m 

Side Yard (west) Hwy 97 4.5 m 7.9 m 

Rear Yard 0.0 m 11.9 m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
2 per service bay (including car 

wash) = 22 stalls 
23 stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
2 Class 1 stalls 
4 Class 2 stalls 

2 Class 1 stalls 
6 Class 2 stalls 

159



DP14-0005 – Page 4 

 
 

Loading Space 1 space 1 

Landscaping 

Front: Level 3 
Side (hwy 97): Level 4 

Side: Level 3 
Rear: Level 3 

Level 3 
Level 4 
Level 3 
Level 3 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Comprehensive Development Permit Guideline Objectives1 

• Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development 
that is coordinated with existing structures; 

• Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character 
amenities of the surrounding area; 

• Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

• Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

• Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

• Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages; 

• Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the City by a target of 
30%, when compared to 2007.  

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

2) A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage.  

3) Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure 
room(s). The drawings submitted for building permit are to clearly identify how this 
rating will be achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

4) Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 
permit. This should include the signage required for the building addressing to be 
defined on the drawings per the bylaws on the permit application drawings. 

5) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 14: Urban Design Development Permit Area, Comprehensive Development Permit 
Area Objectives, p. 14.2. 

160



DP14-0005 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum, dated January 29, 2014 

6.3 Ministry of Transportation 

No comments. 

6.4 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of Kelowna 
Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec flow.  A 
Construction Fire Safety Plan is required and shall be submitted prior to start of construction. 
Additional comments will be required with the building permit application. 

6.5 Interior Health Authority 

No concerns. 

6.6 Irrigation District (RWD) 

This property is not serviced as it was once road allowance.  Servicing could come from 
either the Keehn Rd. side or the Hwy 97 side.   

Further, should this development proceed to building permit stage RWD would request an 
engineering deposit and forward to our engineer.  Based on that review additional 
requirements, ie. Fire hydrant, servicing size, fire protection, may be required. 

6.7 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications' interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.8 Telus 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development.  Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: January 8, 2014 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
James Moore, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 

161



DP14-0005 – Page 6 

 
 

 
  

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Floor Plans 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated January 29, 2014 
DRAFT  Development Permit No. DP14-0005 

162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



Date: 

 
February 17, 2014 
 

RIM #: 
 

0610-51 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Urban Planning Manager, Community Planning and Real Estate Division (RS) 

Title: 
 

Development Application Process Review– Implementation Update  

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the Urban Planning Manager dated 

February 6, 2013 with respect to the Development Application Process Review 

Implementation; 

Purpose:  
 
To provide a status update for Council on the implementation of development application 
process improvements recommended in the Development Application Process Review report 
endorsed by Council on May 27, 2013. 
 
Background: 
 
Research indicates citizens’ interest in neighbourhood projects or participating in planning 
and development process is high. A number of important business improvement initiatives are 
underway including the creation of new tools and technology that both assist and inform 
citizens and customers about the City’s development application process.  
 
A comprehensive review and rethink of how development processes are delivered by the City 
was also a key priority recommended in the City’s 2012 Core Services Review and a highly 
ranked item in the 2012 City of Kelowna Business Process Review. 
 
That review was presented to, and endorsed by Council at the May 27, 2013 meeting. After 
Council endorsement, implementation of the report recommendations began quickly. 
 
To date, staff has completed the following process improvement projects: 
 

 Improved and documented a new application submission process to ensure resources 
are dedicated to early review in an effort to reduce late hits and rework. 

 Updated departmental structure to facilitate a single file manager approach to project 
management (ensuring one File Manager handles the range of file types related to a 
development proposal) 

o Increased focus on empowering file managers 

 Enhancements to the Current Developments Mapping and Development tracking system  

187



o developers and public can now track application progress online 

 City of Kelowna hosted the first 1st “Get to you know your Planner” event held during 
October 2013 

 New “It’s Your Neighbourhood” Development Notice Signage and a suite of templates 
created for consistent look and feel 

 Exit surveys for Development Application and Building Permit application customers to 
create a continual feedback loop for ongoing improvements 

 Standardized templates and applicant contact milestones for the development 
application process   

 Formalized dispute resolution policies 

 Development of a strategic vision, goals and objectives for Community Planning and 
Real Estate Division  

 Development Application Tracking System refresher training (for staff) 

 Electronic circulation of technical agency referrals for all applications   
 
The following process improvement projects are currently underway: 
 

 Creation of Key Performance Indicators (development application process) to track 
quality and quantity of service provided 

 Creation of Municipal Development Application Process 101 Course for developers and 
Planning 101 Course for interested community members. 

 Creation of a development application process manual for staff 
o includes customer service guidelines and late hits policy 

 Development Engineering report improvements for increased clarity for applicants 

 Official Community Plan Development Permit Area review 
o Assess value and success of Development Permits is specific zones 

 Documented and formal pre-application review processes to add clarity and value for 
customers 

 
The following process improvement projects are expected to commence in 2014: 
 

 Instructional YouTube Video(s) for development application process 

 Sign Bylaw Review – Scoping and Revision Plan 

 Update Planning and Development Webpages on Kelowna.ca 

 Utilizing online engagement platforms as another means for citizens to participate in 
the development approval process 

 Research the use of board of variance to consider minor Development Variance Permit 
applications  

 
 
Internal Circulation:  
 
Director, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 
Department Manager, Policy & Planning 
Director, Development Services 
Manager, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
Divisional Director, Communications and Information Services 
 

188



 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
External industry associations and customers have been surveyed and consulted during the 
Development Application Process Review and were circulated on the final version of the 
report. Staff continues to engage the development industry on the implementation of various 
aspects of Development Application process improvement. 
 
Increasing awareness of potential development in the neighbourhoods, by providing clear and 
accessible information will make it easier for citizens to participate in the public process. 
 
Personnel Implications:  
 
Existing staff have been reallocated in order to be solely responsible for implementing and 
monitoring the development application process review.  
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
To date, this initiative has been completed with no additional financial resources. As the 
implementation plan develops, future costs will be requested through the standard budgeting 
process.  
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report:  
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: N/A 
Existing Policy: N/A 
Legal/Statutory Authority: N/A 
Communications Comments: N/A 
Alternate Recommendation: N/A 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
R. Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:               D.Gilchrist, Director of Community Planning and Real Estate   
 
 
cc:  Director, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

Department Manager, Policy & Planning 
Director, Development Services 
Manager, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
Divisional Director, Communications and Information Services 

 
 

  

189



 

 
Key Messages  
 
City Staff working to implement recommendations from the Development Application Process 
Review report. 
 
The DAPR Report recommended improvements (process and structural) to a number of 
different components of the development application process. 
 
 
 

190



D E V E L O P M E N T  A P P L I C AT I O N  
P R O C E S S  R E V I E W  

 - I M P L E M E N TAT I O N  U P D AT E -  

February 17, 2014 

191



B A C K G R O U N D  

 
Council endorsed the Development 
Application Process Review and the 
associated recommendations for process 
improvement on May 27, 2013 

192



I M P L E M E N TAT I O N  

Implementation of the recommendations 
began shortly after Council endorsement 

 

Divisional Strategic Plan 
Created 

Dedicated DA Process  
Improvement Function 

 Structural Changes  
to Departments involved  
in the DA Process 

193



I M P L E M E N TAT I O N  -  C O M P L E T E D  

New Application 
Intake Process 

Current 
Developments 

System Enhanced 

‘Meet the  Planners’ 
Networking Event 

Development 
Notice Signage 

Improved 

Standardized Email 
Response Templates 
and communication 

milestones 

Electronic  
Application 

Circulation to 
Technical Agencies 

Formalized Pre-
Application Review 

Processes 

194



C U S TO M E R  S U RV E Y S  

Exit Surveys 
Implemented 

FEBRUARY 2014 
75% of respondents 

received a clear idea of the 
application submission 
requirements from City 
staff or the file manager 

prior to making their 
application 

FEBRUARY 2013 
50% of respondents 

received a clear idea of the 
application submission 
requirements from City 
staff or the file manager 

prior to making their 
application 

195



C U S TO M E R  S U RV E Y S  

Exit Surveys 
Implemented 

FEBRUARY 2013 
40% of customers agreed 
phone calls were returned 

promptly  

 
FEBRUARY 2014 

86% of customers agreed 
that phone calls were 

returned promptly  
 

196



I M P L E M E N TAT I O N  –  I N  P R O C E S S  

DA Process Manual 
for Staff 

DA Process 101 
Course for 
Customers 

Planning 101 Course 
for the Community 

Development 
Engineering Memo 
Improvements for 
to increase clarity 

OCP Development 
Permit Area Review 

Key Performance 
Indicators/Dashboard 

197



A L S O  A N T I C I PAT E D  F O R  2 0 1 4  

Sign Bylaw Re-
Write Scoping 

Planning/Development 
Webpage(s) update 

You Tube Videos – 
To help Customers 

Online Public 
Engagement tools 

that could be 
incorporated into 
the DA PRocess 

198



R E C A P  

Focus on improving processes that 
improve the transparency, clarity and 
usability of the City’s Development 
Process 
Alec Warrender will present a few of the 
DA Process improvements in a bit more 
detail   

199



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
February 17th, 2013  

Rim No. 
 

1250-04 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Urban Planning 

Subject: 
 

2014 02 17 Report - Signage 

 Report Prepared by: Alec Warrender 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the Urban Planning Department 
dated February 17, 2013 with respect to amending City of Kelowna Development Application 
Procedures Bylaw No. 10540 by revising the public notification and consultation requirements; 
 
AND THAT Bylaw No. 10911, being Amendment No. 3 to Development Application Procedures 
Bylaw No. 10540 be forwarded for reading consideration; 
 
AND THAT Council amends Council Policy No. 367, being Development Application – Public 
Notification and Consultation Procedures, as outlined in the Report of the Land Use 
Management Department, dated February 17, 2013; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council directs staff to monitor the effectiveness of the new 
Development Applicant Signage process within one (1) year of implementation. 
 
 
 
Purpose:  
 
 
Strategic Planning Staff have worked to implement various recommendations of the recent 
Development Application Process Review. Specifically, Staff are working to create a more  
transparent and accessible development application process. Improving electronic file 
management, online access to development application information and community 
communications through enhanced development notice signage and an improved Current 
Developments Mapping are central to these process improvements. 
 
 
 
 

200



 
 
Background: 
 
Current Development Mapping 
The City’s website has had a “Current Development” page for a number of years where the 
public could access details about a proposed development. In Staff’s opinion it has been 
underused due to a lack of available information and general awareness of the resource. 
 
Development Notice Signage 
The Local Government Act and the City’s Development Application Procedures Bylaw require 
that signage be posted onsite for certain types of development applications. The existing 
signage design was modified slightly in 2010 from the original design which had been in place 
for number of years. 
 
Public Consultation 
At the February 18th, 2013 Regular Meeting Council Policy No. 367 was adopted and 
introduced new communication and consultation requirements. When adopted the program 
was to be monitored with Staff reporting back to Council a year later on the effectiveness of 
the new consultation strategies.    
 
Urban Planning: 
 
Current Developments Mapping 
Information Services in collaboration with Urban Planning Staff have been working together 
on improvements to kelowna.ca/currentdevelopments. Although information was always 
available online improvements have made it more user friendly by creating a central source 
that contains project drawings and plans allowing the public to track the timeline of an 
application. Continuing to raise awareness and encouraging people to use it as a resource 
when they do have questions about a particular proposal is important to its success. Staff will 
continue to enhance this online resource for citizens and will explore the feasibility of 
integrating appropriate Council reports to this webpage in the near future.    
 
“It’s Your Neighbourhood” Development Application Signage and Communication Materials 
Communications & Information Services Staff and Urban Planning Staff have created new 
communications materials with consistent “It’s your Neighbourhood” branding that will be 
used during various stages of the Development Application Review process. The following 
materials have been created: 
 

 E-Subscribe Update  
The e-Subscribe update is sent out to 600 subscribers every evening outlining new 
Development Application(s). 

  

 Development Notification 
Development Notices are sent out by the Office of the City Clerk to postal area 
property owners notifying them of an upcoming Public Hearing for a development 
proposal in their neighbourhood. 
 

 Large Format Development Notice Signage (8’ x 4’) 

201



This larger format sign type will be used for major applications and will satisfy 
statutory requirements for public notification of Council Meetings. 

 

 Medium Format Development Notice Signage (4’ x 4’) 
This signage will be used for medium applications and will satisfy statutory 
requirements for public notification of Council Meetings. 
 

 Regular Format Development Notice Signage (2’ x 2’) 

Regular Development Notice Signage will be used for smaller proposals that don’t have 

project images or complex project details.  

Both Council Policy No. 367 and the Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540 will 
need to be amended to clarify the process and accommodate the proposed signage changes. 
Additionally, Council directed Staff to monitor Council Policy No. 367 – Public Notification and 
Consultation for Development Application when it was created.  
 
Council Policy No. 367 – Public Notification and Consultation for Development Applications 
In order to accommodate the new notice materials and to clarify the public consultation 
requirements Council Policy No. 367 will be amended as follows: 
 

 Clarify that the consultation process is the applicant’s responsibility; 

 ‘Zoning Major’ will now also require the larger format signs; 

 Project Board requirement has been modified to accommodate the City’s larger 
format signs rather than signs designed by the developer;     

 Neighbourhood Consultation will be clarified to include both owners & tenants; 
o The evidence of consultation expectations have been clarified; 
o The consultation summary will have to be provided to Staff 20 days prior to 

initial consideration by Council rather than 15 days. 
 
In general, Council Policy No. 367 has worked well and has improved the way the City and the 
applicant consult with and notify the public of development proposals. The proposed 
amendments will help to clarify a few of the processes and accommodate the new signage 
program. 
 
Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540 
The Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540 will be amended as follows: 
 
Signage content – It’s Your Neighbourhood 
Staff are recommending that signage content be amended to allow for a more clear and 
transparent form of project description as the present and future zones can make the 
language cumbersome and difficult to understand. It can also be difficult and confusing to list 
proposed variances on the Development Notice Signage, Staff would prefer to note that 
variances are required and leave the Staff report and the mail out from the Office of the City 
Clerk to explain the technical details. This would satisfy statutory requirements for public 
notification of Council Meetings.   
 
Sign Purchase 
Development Notice Signs will no longer be purchased from the City. Staff will work with the 
applicant using the new template but the applicant will purchase the sign from a sign 
company. The City has undergone a review of sign companies and three companies were 

202



consulted, one signage company was chosen as the preferred signage provider. They have 
been provided with the template and understand the process. The costs associated with the 
new signage process have increased. The large format signs will have additional costs but 
fewer signs will be required for larger frontages. The project board signs previously provided 
by the applicant for major applications are being replaced therefore the overall costs will 
remain more or less the same. The Medium and Regular format signs will cost than the 
existing signs. 
 
Staff believe that the improvements to the City’s Current Developments Mapping, 
communication materials and development notice signage will lead to increased awareness in 
the community and better dialogue about current development applications to ensure the 
public is informed about proposed changes in their neighbourhood. The signs will also help to 
clearly show the proposal and potentially generate interest for the development community. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 
City Clerk 
Communications 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
 
Section 895 of the Local Government Act obligates local governments to establish procedures 
by which the general public may apply to amend an Official Community Plan or Zoning Bylaw 
or to issue a permit under those bylaws. Section 928(4) of the Local Government Act 
authorizes local governments to designate the form of development permits, temporary use 
permits, and development variance permits by bylaw. Section 892 of the Local Government 
Act authorizes local governments to require the posting of development notice signs and 
notification for bylaw amendments. Section 922 of the Local Government Act details the 
requirements for notification in respect of Development Variance Permits. 
 
Existing Policy: 
 
Consultation and notification requirements are contained within the Development Application 
Procedures Bylaw No. 10540 and Council Policy No. 367 Public Notification & Consultation for 
Development Applications. 
 
Personnel Implications: 
 
It is anticipated that some additional time for Urban Planning and Subdivision, Agriculture & 
Environment Services staff will be required in order to manage and monitor the new signage 
program and website features. This will be offset by the time saved by ‘One Window’ Staff no 
longer coordinating and preparing the signage. 
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
The Urban Development Institute has expressed its support for the proposal. 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 

203



Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Communications Comments: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
     

Alec Warrender, Urban Planning 

 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 R. Smith 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
E-Subscribe Banner Template 
Development Notice Template 
4 x 4 - Development Notice Signage 
4 x 4 - Development Notice Signage – Back Up 
8 x 4 – (Project Board) Development Notice Signage. 
Current Developments Webpage Example 
Council Policy No. 367 - Recommended changes 
 
 

  

204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
2/17/2014 
 

File: 
 

0710-40 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Danielle Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Policy and Planning 

Subject: 
 

Rental Housing Grant Recommendation For 2014 

 Report Prepared by: Gary Stephen, Long Range Planning Manager 

 

Recommendation: 
 

THAT Council receives the report from the Department Manager, Policy and Planning dated 
February 17, 2014 regarding a Rental Housing Grant Recommendation for 2014; 
 
AND THAT Council approves the 2014 Rental Housing Grants as identified in the report from 
the Department Manager, Policy and Planning dated February 17, 2014, in accordance with 
the Housing Opportunities Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 8593 and Council Policy No. 335, Rental 
Housing. 
 
Purpose:  
 

To increase the supply of rental housing through the provision of rental housing grants. 
 
Background: 
 

Across Canada there is a tight rental housing supply due to the economics of building this 
form of housing.  However, rental housing is a key housing need with 30% of all Kelowna 
households currently renting and an addition of 300 new tenant households expected annually 
due to population growth.  Some claim that a higher percentage of rental housing is a sign of 
a healthy economy (e.g. Richard Florida refers to 45%).  The surplus of condominiums built for 
the ownership market in Kelowna before the economic downturn eased the rental housing 
market for a short time, but by and large those constructed units are no longer rentals.  
 

According to the fall 2013 Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) Rental Market 
Report, the Kelowna rental market vacancy rate has dropped from 4% to 1.8%, which 
generally means that available units will be in short supply and that there will likely be 
upward pressure on monthly rental rates. 
 

217

http://bigthink.com/ideas/20243


The 2011 Housing Strategy concluded that purpose-built rental housing1 would be the best 
match to address gaps in the long term housing supply.  However, this form of housing is 
difficult to finance2.  In 2012 Council approved expanding the rental grants program and 
changing the revitalization tax exemption program to help augment the purpose built rental 
housing supply.  
 
Applications for 2014 grants were required by the end of September 2013 in accordance with 
the amended Council Policy No.335 – Rental Housing Grants.   A housing agreement must be 
signed to secure the rental dwellings for a minimum of ten years. After ten years a request 
can be made to release the notice of the housing agreement.  To discharge housing 
agreements requires Council approval and a subsequent repayment of the grant funding to 
the City for the Housing Opportunities Reserve Fund (s. 4.4 and 4.5 of the Housing 
Opportunities Reserve Fund By-law 8593).   
 
Requesting a release of the Housing Agreement is not likely for provincially-subsidized, non-
profit rental housing. Requests for stratification of purpose-built rental buildings can be 
expected.  Letters outlining this process are sent to grant recipients and these letters3 would 
specify that repayment of the grant is required if the housing agreement is lifted. This 
process will also be reaffirmed in the housing agreement. 
 
This report outlines the properties being recommended to receive rental housing grants for 
2014, as follows:  

 
1. $273,171 for 70 units at Cambridge / Richter (‘Pleasantvale’) 
2. $46,829 for 12 units at 550 Rowcliffe (Karis Support Society) 
 

The rental housing grants have been established to help offset the cost of DCCs4.  Based on 
the applications received and the DCC estimates, the amount the City could authorize for 
rental housing grants would be $857,322, which is the total cost of the DCC’s.  However, the 
2014 budget provides for $320,0005 in total. On the basis of available budget, the 
recommended grants are summarized in the table outlined below. 
 

Building Number of 
Eligible 

Dwellings 

Recommended 
Grant 

Estimated  
DCC 

Type of Eligible 
Units 

Related 
Development 
Applications 

Central, 
Cambridge, 
Kingsway Ave, 
Richter St 

70 $273,171 $673,474 Low Income 
Seniors / 
Affordable Rental 

Z13-0048 / 
DP13-0018 

550 Rowcliffe 
Ave 

12 $46,829 $183,848 Non-profit Rental DP13-0131 / 
DVP13-0132 

Totals 82 $320,000 $857,322   

 

                                                           
1 Defined in the OCP as rental buildings with 5 or more strictly rental dwellings; this is considered affordable  
housing because rent increases are controlled under the Residential Tenancy Act.  
2 Based on more than 20 (15 Kelowna-based) interviews with rental housing builders, developers and lenders 
conducted by contracted staff in 2010/2011. 
3 Copied to the Director of Finance & Building and Permitting Branch Manager. 
4 Deferral of DCCs was requested by developers during the consultation for the Housing Strategy. 
5 Based on the annual budget for DCC grants and the Housing Opportunities Reserve funding. 

218

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Council%5CPolicies/Rental%20Housing%20Grants%20-%20Pol-335.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws/Housing%20Opportunities%20Reserve%20Fund%20Bylaw%20No.%208593.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws/Housing%20Opportunities%20Reserve%20Fund%20Bylaw%20No.%208593.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Community%20Planning/Housing%20Strategy/2012%20Housing%20Strategy.pdf


Grant recipients will be notified by letter of the amount of the grant and advised that they 
need to include a copy of that letter with their building permit application in order to receive 
a DCC credit, on the DCC’s payable at building permit stage, equal to the amount of the 
grant.   
 
In addition to rental housing grants, application can also be made for property tax exemption.  
The property tax exemption is for the exemption of municipal taxes on new purpose built 
rental buildings for a maximum of 10 years, and does not have to be repaid.  Applications 
must be consistent with the OCP and supported by the City in order to be eligible.  When the 
vacancy rate is 3% or less, purpose-built rental buildings supported by Council, are eligible for 
to apply.  Two purpose-built rental projects (Sutherland and Brookside) have applied for the 
revitalization tax exemption to date.   From 2012, the estimated municipal taxes on a unit 
assessed at $180,000 would average approximately $630 per year. A ten year exemption 
would provide a benefit of $6,300 to the property owner.  
 
Internal Circulation: 
 

Director, Financial Services 
City Clerk  
Manager, Urban Planning 
Director, Communications 
Director, Development Services 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
 

Local Government Act, Sections 877. (1) (a)  933.1(1) 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
 

Housing Opportunities Reserve Fund Bylaw No.8593 
 
Existing Policy: 
 

Official Community Plan 
 

Objective 10.3 Support the creation of affordable and safe rental, non-market and/or 
special needs housing. 

 
Policies 10.3.1, 10.3.2, 10.3.3 & 10.3.4 

 
Council Policy No.335 – Rental Housing Grants 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 

Budgeted funds allow for a contribution of $3,902.44 per dwelling for 82 new rental dwellings.   
 
Available funds are as follows: 
 

Housing Opportunities Reserve Fund (HORF) – annual budget allocation:             $200,000 
Annual Budget Allocation to Rental Grants to provide partial relief from DCCs   $120,000 
Total Funds Available                                                          $320,000 
 
  

219

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Bylaws/Revitalization%20Tax%20Exemption%20Bylaw%20No.%209561.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Bylaws/Revitalization%20Tax%20Exemption%20Bylaw%20No.%209561.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws/Housing%20Opportunities%20Reserve%20Fund%20Bylaw%20No.%208593.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Council%5CPolicies/Rental%20Housing%20Grants%20-%20Pol-335.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws/Housing%20Opportunities%20Reserve%20Fund%20Bylaw%20No.%208593.pdf


Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
External Agency / Public Comments: 
Personnel Implications: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
Gary Stephen, Long Range Planning Manager  
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                  
 
Danielle Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Planning and Policy 
 
cc: 
Director of Finance 
City Clerk 
Manager, Urban Planning 
Director, Communications  
Director, Development Services 

  

220



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
2/17/2014 
 

File: 
 

1840-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

B. Davidson, Parks Planner, Infrastructure Planning 
 

Subject: 
 

2014-02-11 - Report - OBWB and Quality Improvements Grants 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council endorses by resolution the attached application to the 2014-15 Okanagan Basin 
Water Board Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant for the Royal Avenue to 
Strathcona Park Shoreline Stabilization Project. 
 
AND THAT upon confirmation of successful grant award, the 2014 Financial Plan be amended 
to include the additional expenditure of $30,000 for Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park 
improvements funded by an Okanagan Basin Water Board grant. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To seek Council’s support to apply to the Okanagan Basin Water Board for a grant request of 
$30,000.00 for shoreline stabilization as part of the Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park project. 
 
Background: 
 
The purpose of the Okanagan Basin Water Board's (OBWB) Water Conservation and Quality 
Improvement Grant Initiative is to assist local government in addressing issues that enhance 
the valley-wide sustainable use of water. Eligible activities include “Habitat Restoration 
Projects” that restore riparian or foreshore areas to improve water quality.  The deadline for 
application is February 21, 2014.  Staff have examined the 2014 capital budget together with 
the OBWB grant objectives and requirements and have determined that the most appropriate 
project is the Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park Shoreline Stabilization.  As part of the 
application process, all applications must be accompanied by a Council resolution.   
 
Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park Shoreline Stabilization Project – Request $30,000.00 
 
The Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park Shoreline Stabilization Project will implement a 
sustainable approach to protect 120 metres of Okanagan Lake foreshore from storm events in 
order to prevent further upland erosion of public land.  Proposed works will mimic natural 

221



appearances and processes, i.e., sediment transport along the shoreline; add potential fish 
rearing substrate; maintain habitat connectivity between the land and the lake, (i.e., 
introduce no barriers to wildlife movement); add riparian plantings to help stabilize the 
shoreline and add habitat benefit; and limit impacts and disturbance to existing public upland 
and to adjacent beach front property owners. 
 
The sand renourishment option of shoreline stabilization will consist of installing an imported 
sand mixture to protect the existing land from erosion due to wind and wave action.  This 
material will be placed in 15 cm lifts directly up against the existing eroding banks at a 3:1 
slope.  After application, each lift will be moistened with water to ensure compaction. The 
imported material will eventually erode and be transported off site to the north, but it will 
prevent further erosion of the existing upland for an estimated 10 to 12 years.  The amount of 
granular material introduced into the lake will be insignificant over the long term.   
 
On-going annual monitoring and maintenance will be involved to determine when the sands 
and gravels will need to be supplemented; however, with the restoration of riparian 
vegetation to stabilize the bank, the requirement for this maintenance is expected to 
diminish over time. Riparian planting will be a combination of native live stakes planted 
within 1m of the high water mark, as well as nursery grown native tree & shrub species and a 
native grass seed mix. None of the existing vegetation, (e.g., cottonwood, willow, snowberry, 
Nootka rose) will be removed.  Temporary irrigation will be used until these plantings become 
established. 
 
An application for environmental approval has been submitted to the Province and they have 
recently requested additional information for an engineering study to be submitted to 
determine long-term sediment transport.  The scope of the study is currently being 
determined but generally estimated between $30-$50k.  Normally the construction budget 
would be reduced to accommodate these additional costs, but in this case the project meets 
many of the objectives of the OBWB grant and so staff are recommending proceeding with a 
grant submission to help offset the costs of permitting. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
 
Manager, Parks and Public Spaces, Design and Construction 
Manager, Parks and Public Places, Infrastructure Planning 
Grants Manager, Strategic Initiatives 
Financial Services Director 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
The foreshore stabilization costs are estimated at $192,000 of which $30,000 would be 
requested to be funded by OBWB.  The City’s share of the funds are within existing budgets 
for the overall Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

222



 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Existing Policy: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
B. Davidson, Parks Planner, Infrastructure Planning 
 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                   J. Vos, Director Infrastructure Planning 
 
 
Attachment 1: Appendix A - Location Plan - Royal Ave to Strathcona Park 
Attachment 2: Appendix B - WCQI Application Form - OBWB.pdf 
 
cc:  Director, Civic Operations 

Director, Design and Construction 
 

  

223



KGH 

Strathcona  
Park 

Re
no

ur
ish

m
en

t 
 A

re
a 

Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park – Sand Renourishment Area 224



1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, B.C.

V1W 3Z4
250-469-6270

www.obwb.ca
grants@obwb.ca

Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant Program
2014-15 Application Form

Name of Organization
Project Title
Regional District RDNO     RDCO    RDOS  Category 
Supporting Local Gov’t
Project Budget $     Grant Requested $

B. PROJECT CONTACT
Name         
Title
Phone      Fax
Email         

Please carefully complete and review this form before submitting.  Additional space is available in section N. If you are unclear on 
any of the sections, please consult the guide to the application, or contact the Office and Project Manager at 250-469-6270 or 

grants@obwb.ca.

What is the aim of the project?

C. PROJECT SUMMARY

What are the expected deliverables of the project? How will the project’s success be measured?

D. PROJECT DELIVERABLES/MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

A. PROJECT INFORMATION
City of Kelowna - Infrastructure Planning

Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park - Sand Reinforcement Beach Restoration

Restoration

Cityof Kelowna

192000 30000

Barb Davidson

Parks Planner

250-469-8837 250-862-3363

bdavidson@kelowna.ca

To use a sustainable approach to protect an 120m long section of Okanagan Lake foreshore
from storm events in order to prevent further upland erosion of public land; to mimic natural
appearances and processes, i.e., long shore sediment transport;  to add potential fish
rearing substrate; to maintain habitat connectivity between the land and the lake, (i.e., to
introduce no barriers to wildlife movement); to add riparian plantings to help stabilize the
shoreline and add habitat benefit; and to limit impacts and disturbance to existing property
and to adjacent beach front property owners.

Beach (foreshore) restoration by replenishing beach sand (combined with granular material
of different grain sizes for maximum binding capacity)  to a 1V:3H beach slope combined
with upland riparian planting.

Annual monitoring will be undertaken to determine the frequency required for repair /
replacement of beach material by establishing permanent survey points and regularly
measuring the elevation of the sand during low water conditions.

225



1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, B.C.

V1W 3Z4
250-469-6270

www.obwb.ca
grants@obwb.ca

Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant Program
2014-15 Application Form

E. PROJECT METHODOLOGY
Briefly describe how your organization will achieve its goal.

F. PROJECT TIMELINE

Activity (describe any stages of the project below including dates)

Project Start Date               Completion Date 
  

An imported sand mixture will protect the existing land from erosion due to wind and wave
action.  This material will be placed in 15 cm lifts directly up against the existing eroding
banks at a 3:1 slope (the angle of repose for sand).  After application, each lift will be
moistened with water to ensure compaction. The imported material will eventually erode and
be transported off site to the north by longshore drift, but it will prevent further erosion of the
existing upland for an estimated 10 to 12 years.  The amount of granular material introduced
into the lake will be insignificant over the long term.  Ongoing monitoring and maintenance
will be involved to determine when the sands and gravels will need to be supplemented;
however, with the restoration of riparian vegetation to stabilize the bank, the requirement for
this maintenance is expected to diminish over time.
Riparian planting will be an combination of native live stakes planted within 1m of the high
water mark, as well as and nursery grown native tree & shrub species and a native grass
seed mix. None of the existing vegetation, (e.g., cottonwood, willow, snowberry, Nootka rose)
will be removed.  Temporary irrigation will be used until these plantings become established.

October 13, 2014 December 31, 2014

In order to minimize the amount of "in water" work required in Okanangan Lake, work below
the high water mark will occur during the low water window, which is  typically between
November and April.

- Installation of temporary irrigation system for riparian plantings - mid-October
- Placement of Floating Silt Curtain within lake to prevent any mobilized sediment from leaving
the project area - Week of October 27th
- Removal of Foreshore Encroachments (concrete stairs and paving, failing timber retaining
wall) - Week of October 27th
- Placement of Beach Sands and Gravels during low water - week of November 3rd
- Anchoring large woody debris below high water mark - week of November 10th
- Topsoil Placement for riparian plantings - week of November 10th
- Install riparian planting - week of November 17th
- Testing and blow out of temporary irrigation system - week of November 17th
- Establishment of permanent survey points and conducting baseline measurements - week of
November 24th

226



1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, B.C.

V1W 3Z4
250-469-6270

www.obwb.ca
grants@obwb.ca

Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant Program
2014-15 Application Form

How does this project illustrate collaboration with other agencies? With other jurisdictions?
G. PROJECT PARTNERS

Recognizing that the Okanagan is one valley with one water, how does this project benefit the valley as a 
whole? Describe how the outcomes of the project can benefit others in the Okanagan.

H. PROJECT VALLEY-WIDE BENEFIT

I. PROJECT INNOVATION

What is innovative about this project? Will this project present a new and/or innovative approach or ad-
dress a previously unidentified issue? 

J. GRANT TRACK RECORD
If your organization has received OBWB grants for previous projects, please comment on the success of 
the projects and the significance of the grants to your organization.

While not a formal partner, the Province discourages the use of retaining walls and other
armouring strategies in favour of a more sustainable approach.

The Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park sand renourishment project will demonstrate how a
sustainable approach that mimics natural processes can be used successfully to guard
against erosion throughout the Okanagan Basin.

Through the success of this project it is hoped that sand renourishment could become a
viable solution of foreshore stabilization elsewhere in the Okanagan Valley, and perhaps be
recognized as a Best Management Practise.

Much of the Okanagan Lake foreshore has been experiencing high levels of erosion in recent
years.  The sand renourishment method of erosion control is a sustainable cost effective
emerging alternative to the traditional practise of armouring with rip rap or construction of
retaining walls, both of which have the potential to increase scour, create adverse impacts to
adjacent waterfront properties, and divide upland from aquatic habitat.

While the City of Kelowna has received several OBWB grants, the Infrastructure Planning
Department specifically received a 2011 grant for the Mill Creek Corridor Infrastructure Impact
Management Plan.  This plan has been valuable in determining the environmental impacts of
planned projects along the creek and in assigning costs for land acquisition and restoration.
The extent of impacts identified in the plan have triggered city staff to rescope some of these
planned projects in order to reduce their impacts.

227



1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, B.C.

V1W 3Z4
250-469-6270

www.obwb.ca
grants@obwb.ca

K. PROJECT FUNDING

Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant Program
2014-15 Application Form

Total Project Budget  $

Project Management
Equipment
Supplies/Consumables
Printing/Media
Consultant/Contractor
Travel
Wages 

Other

Total Project Funding  $

Source      Type    Confirmed

L. PROJECT EXPENSES

M. OBWB STRATEGIC GOALS
Describe how the project addresses OBWB 2014-2019 Strategic Goals available here: http://www.obwb.
ca/obwb-strategic-plan/

192000

City of Kelowna 2013 capital budget Direct

City of Kelowna 2014 capital budget Direct

In-Kind

In-Kind

✔

✔

In-Kind

192,000

7,643

134,605

18,250

30,571 (20% contingency)

1) Information gathering on annual rates of foreshore erosion to assist with future basin wide
planning  initiatives.
2) Creation and maintenance of healthy riparian and aquatic habitats in a developed area
which will in turn enhance water quality for drinking, swimming and fishing.
3) Protection of foreshore and water quality from extreme erosion events by mimicking natural
processes.
4) Enhance relationships between OBWB and local government.

228

http://www.obwb.ca/obwb-strategic-plan/


1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, B.C.

V1W 3Z4
250-469-6270

www.obwb.ca
grants@obwb.ca

N. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Water Conservation and Quality Improvement Grant Program
2014-15 Application Form

Please add any pertinent information you wish to have considered in your application.

SUBMITTING THIS APPLICATION
Please ensure you have reviewed the terms of reference and the guide to the application.  

Once your application is complete, please submit a copy, along with the required supporting 
resolution from local government and any other supporting documents, to:

The Okanagan Basin Water Board
re: 2014-15 WCQI
1450 K.L.O. Road

Kelowna, B.C.
V1W 3Z4

Applications must be recieved by 4:00 p.m., February, 21, 2014. Late or incomplete 
applications will not be accepted. Please save a copy of the application for your records.

Please See (attached following) :

Appendix A - Detailed Cost Estimate.
Appendix B - Shoreline Stabilization Plan and Cross Section

229



 

  

Appendix A: 
Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park - Sand Renourishment Cost Estimate   

No. DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNITS ESTIMATED  
QUANTITY 

ESTIMATED 
UNIT COST  

 EXTENDED 
AMOUNT  

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS        $            4,500  
015701 Environmental Protection - supply and install silt curtain   lin m 60 75  $             4,500  

EXISTING CONDITIONS        $          25,000  

024114a Site Demolition L.S. 1 25,000  $           25,000  

  Removal and disposal of fencing, concrete steps, stone patio, rock mulch, concrete path, wooden retaining 
wall, concrete pilings, concrete curbing  

EARTHWORKS        $            5,000  

311101 Clearing and Grubbing m2 1,000 1.00  $             1,000  

311141 Shrub & Tree Preservation L.S. 1 1,000  $             1,000  

312201 Site Grading  m2 1,500 2.00  $             3,000  

ROADS AND SITE IMPROVEMENTS        $          65,105  

329121c Topsoil & Finish Grading - 450mm, riparian planting  m2 400 36.00  $           14,400  

329220b Seeding - broadcast seeding riparian area m2 400 0.50  $               200  

  shrubs 15cm pots (supply and install) ea. 100 8.00  $               800  

  live stakes (supply and install) m2 50 9.60  $               480  

  large woody debris (supply and install) ea. 10 820.00  $             8,200  

  armour rock (supply and install) ea. 10 80.00  $               800  

  sand & gravel mix (supply and install) m2 1,150 30.00  $           34,500  

  beach sand topdressing m2 460 10.00  $             4,600  

  water to compact sand/gravel day 3 250.00  $               750  

  Beaver Protection "tree tubes" ea. 50 7.50  $               375  

IRRIGATION        $          35,000  

329401b Irrigation-control system, pipes, valves etc. , testing, 
blow-out L.S.  1  35,000  $           35,000   

SUB-TOTAL : $      134,605 

CONSULTING        $          18,250  

  Environmental Management Plan, Construction 
Monitoring, and Maintenance Plan Support LS 1 7,400.00  $             7,400  

  As Built Survey & Summary Report LS 1 4,750.00  $             4,750  

  Irrigation Design LS 1 2,000.00  $             2,000  

  WFN Archeological Consultant day 3 1,200.00  $             3,600  

  Establish survey points and conduct baseline 
measurements LS 1 500.00  $               500  

SUB-TOTAL:   $      152,855  
  

  
  

  

CONSTRUCTION 
CONTINGENCY :  20%  $          30,571  

  CITY STAFF 
COSTS :  5% 

 $           7,643  
      TOTAL :   $      191,069  

 

230



Appendix B 
Royal Avenue to Strathcona Park Shoreline Stabilization - 
Sand Renourishment Option 

Concept Plan 

Typical Cross Section 

231



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
2/17/2014 
 

File: 
 

1840-40 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

P. McCormick, Planner Specialist, Urban Design 

Subject: 
 

Public Art Program, Annual Report, 2013 

  
 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information, the 2013 Annual Report for the City of Kelowna Public 
Art Program; 
 
AND THAT Council approves the proposed work plan for 2014, as set out in the report of the 
Planner Specialist, Urban Design, dated February 17 2014. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To update Council on the status of the Public Art Program and to receive Council direction 
with regard to initiatives for 2014. 
 
Background: 
Council recognizes that the aesthetic quality and sense of place of Kelowna’s public realm 
can be enhanced through works of art and that provision of such works can increase 
community identity as well as awareness and appreciation of the arts.  
 
The City of Kelowna has therefore established a Public Art Program to acquire art for public 
engagement. The Public Art Program had its inception in 1997 and since that time, annual 
funding in support of the Program has been allocated by Council. This funding has contributed 
to the commissioning of more than 35 works of public art.  
 
2013 Projects 
a) Bernard Avenue Projects 

In 2013, two projects were installed in conjunction with the revitalization of Bernard Avenue. 
The first, entitled Illuminature (Appendix A), was designed and fabricated by local artist 
Crystal Przybille. Crystal was commissioned in late 2012 to create 24 plates to be attached to 
the custom-designed lamp posts on Bernard Avenue. There are eight designs, drawing on the 
natural and cultural landscapes of the Central Okanagan. Eighteen plates have been installed 
and the remaining six will be installed when renovation of the street is completed in spring 
2014. The plates are made of steel with backlit acrylic accents. 

232



2 
 

 
The budget for the project was $60,000.00. The selection process was an invited competition 
to six local artists who work in metal. The selection was made on the advice of a panel made 
up of members from the Public Art Roster and one member representing the Downtown 
Kelowna Association (DKA). 
 
The second project was a set of banners designed by two Westbank First Nation (WFN) artists. 
Janine Lott, an established local artist, led the exercise and in the spirit of collaboration of 
the Westbank First Nation peoples, mentored emerging artist Jordan Coble. The theme of the 
banners is “The Land is Our Culture” and the result is five exciting designs applied to both 
sides of the eight gateway poles located near the intersection with Richter Street for a total 
of 16 banners.  
 
Each banner (Appendix B) tells a story related to the culture of the Syilx/Okanagan people. 
The banner designs complement the design of the gateway poles that include steel plates 
inscribed with the English word "welcome" and the Syilx word meaning “thank you”. The 
banners were inaugurated on November 26, 2013 at a ceremony attended by Mayor Gray and 
Westbank First Nation Chief, Robert Louie. 
 
The budget for the project was $20,000.00. Four WFN artists were invited to submit work for 
review by the City’s Public Art Planner and the staff of the WFN’s Cultural Repository. The 
award of the contract was made on the advice of WFN’s Heritage Curator. Each submitting 
artist received a stipend of $1,500.00. 
 
The banners were inaugurated at an on-site ceremony on November 26, 2013. Mayor Gray and 
Chief Robert Louie of Westbank First Nation addressed the artists and a gathering of staff 
from the City and WFN, public art supporters, and the media.  
 
b)  Library Parkade Expansion 

A third project was commissioned in 2013for the design and fabrication of 7 screens that will 
be mounted on the addition to the Library Parkade (Appendix C). Artist Susan Zocolla of 
Seattle, Washington (http://susanzoccola.com/commissions.html) was selected by a panel made 
up of members of the Public Art Roster and one member representing the DKA. The screens 
will  depict images from the natural landscape of the Central Okanagan. 
 
The budget for the project is $100,000.00. The selection process was a two-stage invited 
competition. Twenty-six submissions were received in response to the Request for Expressions 
of Interest. From these responses, 5 artists were asked to submit detailed proposals.  

c) Community Public Art Program 

The Community Public Art Program is a sub-program within the Public Art Program. It engages 
local artists with Kelowna non-profit organizations in the collaborative creation of temporary 
or permanent works of art. The goals of the program are to encourage the creation of 
publicly accessible, permanent or temporary artworks; foster community pride and identity; 
and reflect the diversity, needs, and ambitions of the community. The program requirements 

can be accessed at http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/AssetFactory.aspx?did=13127. 

In 2013, two submissions were received. One award of $2,500.00 was made to the University 
of British Columbia Okanagan’s Critical and Creative Studies Department. Under the auspices 

233

http://susanzoccola.com/commissions.html
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/AssetFactory.aspx?did=13127


3 
 

of the department, two participatory activities were held on June 13, 2013 at Tugboat Bay 
Beach. The activities brought together students in a dialogue about creating awareness and 
sharing knowledge of environmental issues (Appendix D). Along with the students, the event 
included over 35 volunteers. Volunteers included Telus Communications employees, student 
and research assistants from UBCO, and over 20 parent volunteers from School District 23. 
 
Thinking through Doing:  
Students left their footprints on three successive cloth scrolls, gradually reducing the size of 
each footprint; each footprint being a metaphor for the student’s carbon footprint. On the 
first scroll the student was encouraged to walk barefoot, on the second on tiptoe, and on the 
third, again on tiptoe using ballet pointe shoes. After leaving their footprints, the students 
shared insights about leaving a smaller carbon footprint and what it might mean in their 
everyday lives. The project was documented in the form of a video which will be posted to 
the City’s website.  
 
Planted on Pointe:  
Students also participated in a living wall project. This activity was aimed at developing 
innovative thinking and problem-solving capabilities. Students were supplied with recycled 
pointe shoes, soil, drought-resistant native grasses, paper, and pens. They put the soil and 
plants in the pointe shoes and then generated ideas on paper showing how the shoes could be 
suspended. Construction of the wall was not within the scope of the project though a proto-
type will be temporarily exhibited, along with documentation of the process, in an accessible 
area to be determined this spring. 
 
Turf the Turf 
A second award of $2,500.00 was made to Inner Fish Performance Co., a local 
interdisciplinary performance company that collaborates with artists from diverse disciplines, 
to create original live art. The project was entitled Turf the Turf: Eco Garden Bike Tour 
(Appendix E), an interactive bike tour of local front yards that are being used in creative 
ways. The tour included an online map and audio accompaniment that were available for 
download. The aim of the project was to highlight eco-friendly alternatives to the traditional 
front lawn. Guided tours were held as part of the Culture Days weekend in addition to the 
launch of the website and self-guided version. 

Two Community Public Art projects carried over from 2012 were completed in 2013. The 
Centre culturel francophone de l'Okanagan completed a set of six murals on the west face of 
its building at 702 Bernard Avenue (Appendix F), for which it received a grant of $7,500.00. 
The murals are entitled Windows to the Past and enhance the visibility of the francophone 
community within the Central Okanagan as well as promote cultural diversity. The murals 
were painted by local artist Henri Brazeau. 

The second project was a set of murals at Edith Gay Park in Rutland (Appendix G). A grant of 
$7,500.00 was given to Rutland Minor Baseball Association to paint the murals, one each on 
the backsides of 4 dugouts to celebrate the organization’s 50 years of providing recreational 
and competitive baseball to local children and teenagers. The murals were painted by local 
artists Liz Dumontet and Dylan Ranney (Tandem Studios). 

 

d) Local Artists Roster 

234



4 
 

The creation of a roster for local artists was among the recommended changes to the Program 
endorsed by Council in 2012. The intent of this initiative is to provide a convenient 
mechanism for local artists to be made aware of City-initiated public art opportunities. 
 
In conjunction with the City’s Purchasing Branch, the roster was advertised in October, 2013. 
Eight artists have registered to date and additional names will be accepted as they are 
received. E-mails to registrants will be in addition to any notices posted on the City website 
and any other websites used by the City’s Purchasing Branch to advertise City projects. 
 
e) Maintenance 

Repairs to Stones Pear Grove at Ben Lee Park in 2013 are pending. As a result of deterioration 
from exposure to the natural elements, the wood planks that form the walking surface of the 
bridge will be replaced with composite plastic components once a supplier has been sourced.  
 
Also, the fountain at the Bennett Courtyard reached the end of its serviceable life in 2013. 
Since funding is not available to fix the pump and fountain, staff will plant the fountain basin 
with drought-resistant vegetation.  Irrigation of the refurbished area will be provided in 
conjunction with the renovation of the Queensway transit station. This construction is 
expected to be completed in 2015. 

 
Work Plan for 2014 
In 2014, the following projects are planned, in addition to the installation of the artworks at 
the Library Parkade: 
 
a) The Public Art Brochure 

(http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs//Art/PublicArtBrochure.pdf) was updated in 2010 
and will be updated in 2014 to include the artworks that have been added to the City’s 
collection in the intervening years. The City’s website 
(http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/Page264.aspx) and the Cultural District Self-Guided Walking 
Tour (http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/AssetFactory.aspx?did=13022) will also be updated.  

b) The Community Public Art Program received 2 applications for 2014 that were recently 
evaluated by a panel comprised of members of the Public Art Roster. Up to $15,000.00 
was available. An award was made to Cool Arts Society in the amount of $1,900.00. The 
project will be completed in 2014 and a full description of the project will be provided to 
Council in next year’s Annual Report. 
   

c) Police Services Building – funding has been identified as part of the overall capital budget. 
A two-stage open competition will be initiated this year for a public artwork.  The artwork 
will acknowledge and commemorate the RCMP’s strong tradition and its role in providing 
order and security to Canadian communities.  Evaluations will be done by members of the 
Public Art Roster and a representative of the RCMP.  

d) Queensway Transit Station – the artwork on the transit island, Running Man, could be 
relocated from the island to a location on the adjoining street frontages. The move may 
be necessitated by the redesign of the island and the proposed construction of an 
overhead structure. Staff are working with the consultant on a location that will be 
consistent with the artwork’s theme. 

235

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/Art/PublicArtBrochure.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/Page264.aspx
http://www.kelowna.ca/CM/AssetFactory.aspx?did=13022


5 
 

e) Temporary Public Art Program - In November 2012, City Council endorsed changes to the 
Public Art Program. One of the initiatives endorsed by Council was the creation of a 
subsidiary program whereby artworks would be on display for a limited time in high-profile 
locations within Kelowna’s urban centres.  

The initiation of the temporary public art program is proposed for 2014. The goal of the 
program will be to broaden the scope and appeal of the Public Art Program, to help 
animate Kelowna’s public spaces, and to increase opportunities for local emerging artists 
to participate in the City’s Public Art Program. 

It is proposed that the program be administered by Kelowna Art Gallery (KAG) under a 
service agreement with the City. The rationale for this approach is to capitalize on KAG’s 
expertise and to conserve City resources.  

This would be an on-going program. Funding is expected to come from the annual public 
art allocation, and the amount would be included as an additional sum in KAG’s annual 
grant from the City. Staff are working on the details including a budget, and a terms of 
reference will be presented to Council for its consideration later this year. 

 
f) Signage Project - a sign structure will be built at the east end of the W.R. Bennett Bridge 

on the south side of the highway adjacent to the existing pedestrian path as it comes off 
the bridge.  The freestanding structure will be typical of the two-sided signage structures 
built as part of the Downtown wayfinding program.  
 
It will include information on the commemorative artwork entitled Standing, Leaning, and 
Reclining, also located at the end of the bridge, which was designed by i.e., creative 
artworks and fabricated from sections salvaged from the lift span of the old bridge. To 
complement the artwork, the structure will relate through text and archival photos, 
information on the bridge that was removed to make way for the new bridge. To assist 
pedestrians and cyclists coming off the bridge, and with graphics and layout consistent 
with the other signs in the wayfinding program, it will include maps and other information 
on Kelowna’s Downtown.  

 
Summary 
The Public Art Program enjoyed many successes in 2014. The Bernard Avenue projects in 
particular, were well received and are distinctive additions to Downtown that proudly reflect 
Kelowna’s local artistic talent. Staff look forward with optimism to 2014. 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
The proposed work plan will be funded from existing City budgets including the annual 
$100,000 public art allocation. 
 
Internal Circulation: 
Active Living and Culture, Divisional Director 
Communications and Information Services, Divisional Director 
Cultural Services Manager 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 

236



6 
 

Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
P. McCormick, Planner Specialist, Urban Design 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                   B. Berry, Director, Design & Construction Services 
 
 
 
Appendices:  A: 2014-02-17: Illuminature  
  B: 2014-02-17: The Land is Our Culture 
  C: 2014-02-17: Library Parkade Addition Artworks 
  D: 2014-02-17: Thinking Through Doing/Planted on Pointe 
  E: 2014-02-17: Turf the Turf 
  F: 2014-02-17: Windows to the Past 
  G: 2014-02-17: Rutland Minor Baseball Association Murals 
 
cc: Active Living and Culture, Divisional Director 
 Communications and Information Services, Divisional Director 
 Executive Director, Kelowna Art Gallery 
  

  

237



7 
 

Appendix A, 2014-02-17: Illuminature 
 

 

238



8 
 

Appendix B, 2014-02-17: The Land is Our Culture 

 

239



Appendix C, 2014-02-17: Library Parkade Addition Artworks 

240



Appendix D, 2014-02-17: Thinking Through Doing/Planted on Pointe 
 

 

 
  

241



11 
 

Appendix E, 2014-02-17: Turf the Turf: Eco Garden Bike Tour 
 

 
  

242



12 
 

Attachment F, 2014-02-17: Windows to the Past 
 

 

243



13 
 

 
Attachment G, 2014-02-17: Rutland Minor Baseball Association Murals 
 

 
 

 

244



C I T Y  O F  K E L O W N A  
P U B L I C  A RT  P R O G R A M  
ANNUAL REPORT – 2013 

245



246



 

247



248



 

249



 

250



 

251



 

252



 

253



 

254



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
2/17/2014 
 

File: 
 

0600-10 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Alternate Approval Form for the New Police Services Building Project 

 Report Prepared by: C. Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the City Clerk, dated February 17, 
2014 regarding the Alternative Approval Process for the borrowing of Forty-Two Million, Three 
Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars for the new Police Services Building Project; 
  
AND THAT an alternative approval process opportunity open to all electors within the City of 
Kelowna be initiated in relation to the borrowing by loan authorization bylaw as outlined in 
the report from the Infrastructure Divisional Director presented at the Monday, December 2, 
2013 Regular Council Meeting; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT 4pm, Friday, March 28, 2014 be set as the deadline for receipt of 
elector responses in the form attached to the February 17, 2014, report of the City Clerk in 
relation to the City of Kelowna proceeding with the adoption of Bylaw No. 10900 being the 
Kelowna Police Services Building Loan Authorization Bylaw authorizing the borrowing of Forty-
Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars for the construction of a new 
Police Services Building Project. 
 
 
Purpose:  
 
To initiate an alternative approval process, and establish the deadline for receipt of elector 
responses for the borrowing from the Municipal Finance Authority of Forty-Two Million, Three 
Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($42, 384, 000.00) for the new Kelowna Police 
Services Building project. 
 
 
 
 

255



Background: 
 
Following first three readings for Bylaw No. 10900 being the Kelowna Police Services Building 
Loan Authorization Bylaw at the Regular Meeting of Council on January 13, 2014, the bylaw 
was forwarded for Statutory Approval from the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural 
Development.  As Statutory Approval was granted on February 6, 2014 the City may now 
proceed with the Alternative Approval Process to seek approval of the electors for the 
borrowing of Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($42, 384, 
000.00). 
  
Approval of the electors will be obtained if the number of elector responses received by the 
end of the alternative approval process is less than 10% of the number of electors (9, 484).  
Elector response forms will be available at City Hall, 1435 Water Street, Parkinson Recreation 
Centre, 1800 Parkinson Way and posted on the City’s website kelowna.ca. 
    
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Section 86 Community Charter, alternative approval process 
Section 174 Community Charter, establishing the limit on borrowing and other liabilities. 
Section 179 Community Charter, long term borrowing. 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Pursuant to Section 86 of the Community Charter, Council is required to approve the elector 
response form as attached to this report for an alternative approval process and establish the 
deadline for receipt of elector responses, which must be at least thirty days after the second 
publication of the alternative approval process notice. 
 
Notice requirements for the alternative approval process are set by Section 94 of the 
Community Charter. Notices will be posted on the public notice board at City Hall, advertised 
in the Kelowna Capital News Friday, February 21st, 2014 and Tuesday, February 25th, 2014 and 
posted on the City’s website.   
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Existing Policy: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
 
Two public Open Houses have been scheduled for this coming March 6th and March 10th from 
3:30pm – 6:30pm at the Royal Anne Hotel on Bernard Ave. City staff will be on hand to answer 
any questions relating to the new Kelowna Police Services Building and related project work. 
 
All information, as it is available, will be posted on the City’s website at 
kelowna.ca/cityprojects under the “Police Services Project” page.  
 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Internal Circulation:  
 

256



Submitted by:  
 
 
Stephen Fleming, City Clerk 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 (R. Mayne, Director of Corporate and Protective Services) 
 
cc:  
K. Van Vliet, Manager Utility and Building Projects 

  

257



Alternative Approval 
Elector Response Form 

 
 

 Kelowna Police Services Building 
 

Office of the City Clerk 
1435 Water Street  

Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4 

250 469-8645 

kelowna.ca 
I am OPPOSED to the City of Kelowna proceeding with the adoption of Bylaw No. 10900, being the Kelowna Police Services Building Loan 
Authorization Bylaw, authorizing the borrowing of Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($42, 384, 000.00) for 
the construction of a new Kelowna Police Services Building and related project work. 
 
 INSTRUCTIONS 
 If you are opposed to the borrowing of a total of Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars for the 

construction of a new Police Services Building and related project work outlined above, and you qualify as an elector of the City of 
Kelowna, you may sign an alternative approval process elector response form. 

 If you are NOT opposed to the Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars for the construction of a new 
Kelowna Police Services Building and related project work outlined above, you need do nothing. 

 Exact copies of the alternative approval process elector response forms may be made with each alternative approval process elector 
response form, or accurate copy, signed by one or more electors. 

 To sign an alternative approval process elector response form you MUST meet the following criteria for either a Resident Elector OR a 
Non-resident (Property) Elector: 

 
I, the undersigned, hereby certify that: 
► I am eighteen years of age or older; and 
► I am a Canadian citizen; and 
► I have resided in British Columbia for at least six months; and 
► I have resided in the City of Kelowna for at least thirty days OR I have been the registered owner of real property, and 

have been designated as the elector in regard to that property, in the City of Kelowna for at least thirty days (may only 
sign an alternative approval process elector response form once, no matter how many parcels the person might own within 
the City of Kelowna); and 

► I am not disqualified by the Local Government Act or any other enactment or otherwise disqualified by law from voting in 
local elections; and 

► I am entitled to sign this alternative approval process elector response form and have not previously signed an alternative 
approval process elector response form for the proposed Agreement. 

 
Note: You MUST reside or own property within the municipal boundaries of the City of Kelowna in order to sign this alternative 
approval process elector response form.  You must meet the requirements above in order to sign this form. 

Elector’s Full name: 

(Print – NO initials) 

Residential Address: 

(or address of real property in Kelowna owned by 

elector if not resident) 

Signature of Elector: 

   

   

   

   

 All alternative approval process elector response forms must be received by the City Clerk, 2nd Floor City Hall 1435 Water Street, 

Kelowna, BC, V1Y 1J4 on or before 4 pm Friday, March 28th, 2014. 
 NOTE: A person must not sign any alternative approval process elector response form more than once and may not withdraw his or her 

name from the alternative approval process elector response form after the deadline for submission of the petitions has passed.  
 The number of eligible electors of the City of Kelowna is estimated to be 94, 845. If 10% (9,484) of the estimated number of electors of 

the City of Kelowna sign an alternative approval process elector response form opposing the noted transactions, City Council will not 
be able to proceed without then receiving the assent of the electors by referendum. 

 Personal information gathered on this form is collected under the authority of the Community Charter and Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act and will be used only by Legislative Services Branch staff to verify the validity of the petition. 

258



259



260


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - January 27, 2014 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	2. Minutes - February 3, 2014 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	3.1 Heritage Week 2014.pdf
	3.2 CoKHGP Year End Report December 2013.pdf
	3.2 Appendix 1 City of Kelowna Heritage Grants Program Applications 2007 to 2013.pdf
	3.2 KELOWNA HERITAGE GRANTS PROGRAM City Council Presentation, Feb. 17, 2014.pdf
	4.1 2014 02 17 Report A13-0016 1454 Teasdale Rd.docx
	4.1 2014 02 17 Attachments A13-0016 1454 Teasdale Rd.pdf
	4.2 2014 02 17 Report OCP13-0014 Z13-0043 1150 Steele Rd.docx
	4.2 2014 02 17 Attachments Z13-0043 1150 Steele Rd.pdf
	4.2.1 Bylaw No. 10914 (OCP13-0020).pdf
	4.2.2 Bylaw No. 10915 (Z13-0043).pdf
	4.3 2014 02 17 Report Z14-0003 4377 Gordon Dr.docx
	4.3 2014 02 17 Attachments Z14-0003 4377 Gordon Dr.pdf
	4.3.1 Bylaw No. 10916 (Z14-0003).pdf
	4.4 2014 02 17 Report DP13-0197 945 Academy Way .docx
	4.4 2014 02 17 Attachments DP13-0197 945 Academy Way.pdf
	4.5 2014 02 17 Report DP14-0005 Keehn Rd.docx
	4.5 2014 02 17 Attachment DP-14-0005 Keehn Rd.pdf
	5.1 17-02-2014 DAPR Update Report - Council.docx
	5.1 17-02-2014 Development Application Process Review Council Update.pdf
	5.2 2014 02 17 Report - Signage.docx
	5.2 2014 02 17 Attachments Signage Report.pdf
	5.2.1 Bylaw No. 10911.pdf
	5.3 2014-02-17 Report - 2014 Rental Housing Grants - Final.docx
	5.4 2014-02-11 - Report - OBWB and Quality Improvements Grants.docx
	5.4 2010-02-11 - Appendix A - Location Plan - Royal Ave to Strathcona Park.pdf
	5.4 2010-02-11 - Appendix B - WCQI Application Form - OBWB.pdf
	5.5 2014-02-17 - Public Art Program Annual Report, 2013.docx
	5.5 2014-02-17 - Presentation - Public Art Program Annual Report,2013.pdf
	5.6 Approving AAP Form for Kelowna Police Services Building Loan Authorization.docx
	6.1 Bylaw No. 10910.pdf

